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About our annual report
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) requires clinical commissioning groups
to prepare their annual report and accounts in accordance with directions issued by NHS
England with the approval of the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC).
These directions also require clinical commissioning groups to comply with the requirements
laid out in the Group Manual for Accounts issued by the DHSC. The Group Manual for
Accounts complies with the requirements of the Government Financial Reporting Manual,
which the Department of Health Group Accounts are required to comply with.
Due to the current coronavirus pandemic, the requirements for the contents of annual
reports been revised nationally; this means there may be some omissions against previous
and future such publications. For 2020-21, we have followed the structure outlined in the
current DHSC templates, including the three core sections:
• Performance report - including an overview, performance analysis and performance
measures
• Accountability report - including the members report, corporate governance report,
annual governance statement, remuneration and staff report
• Annual Accounts

A note about abbreviations
Throughout this report, we use a number of abbreviations.
These are always explained in full the first time they appear,
but the most common ones are:
• CCG - Clinical commissioning group
• ICP - Integrated Care Partnership
• ICS - Integrated Care System
• LTHT - Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust
• LCH - Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust
• LCC - Leeds City Council
• LCP - Local Care Partnership
• LYPFT - Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
• NHSEI - NHS England and NHS Improvement
• WYH HCP - West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health and Care Partnership
(also referred to as West Yorkshire and Harrogate Integrated Care System / ICS)
• YAS - Yorkshire Ambulance Service
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Chair and chief executive’s foreword
Our annual report shows how we have
performed and how we have used your
money as taxpayers to deliver the best
possible care for local people. This year, our
report is less detailed than in previous years
as many colleagues are engaged in the city’s
response to the national pandemic. However, we
strive to provide the most essential information
with clarity and transparency.

who almost overnight transformed their services
to continue to safely care for their patients.
The groups of practices which form the city’s
primary care networks (PCNs) have continued to
develop and mature over the past year, bringing
more services to communities and ensuring
health inequalities are tackled more locally.
PCNs have risen magnificently to the challenge
of the pandemic and subsequent vaccination
programme, providing invaluable insight, support
and leadership.

Ordinarily, our report would also celebrate what
we have achieved during the past 12 months.
That doesn’t feel appropriate this year. Instead,
we have used the opportunity to reflect on what
has been an extraordinary and challenging year
for all of us, not just in Leeds or this country but
across the world as we have responded to the
pandemic.

Over the past year, we have seen a number of
changes to the way we have worked at the CCG.
Most of us have been working remotely for more
than 12 months now. Technology has enabled us
to continue to do our jobs and it’s fair to say, that
like our colleagues across the system, we’ve never
worked harder, and despite not being able to meet
in person, relationships with teams and partner
organisations have never been stronger. There
have been changes in the Governing Body too. In
July 2020, Dr Jason Broch was elected as clinical
chair of the CCG, taking over from Dr Gordon
Sinclair. We also said goodbye to Dr. Julianne Lyons
and Dr. Ben Browning who have served as GP
member representatives on the Governing Body
since the formation of a single Leeds CCG. We
would like to thank all of them for their significant
contribution and dedication to the CCG and local
communities.

We’re mindful of just how difficult this year
has been for Leeds residents. Every single one
of us has been affected by the pandemic in
some way: we may have lost family, friends or
colleagues; endured the effects of long-COVID;
been separated from loved ones; experienced
emotional distress; lost jobs and livelihoods; or at
the very least, had our normal lives and routines
turned upside down. Although the situation is
improving and the vaccine offers us real hope for
a return to some kind of normal, we know we
still face significant challenges as a health and
care system and as a city.

Looking ahead, the work we’ve undertaken to
become a strategic commissioner through our
‘Shaping our Future’ programme will help us make
a smooth transition into an integrated care system,
as outlined in the February 2021 Health and Social
Care White Paper. We know that much still needs
to be done while we also continue to respond
to the pandemic and safely restart services. We
will work together with patients, the public and
our partners to address these challenges as we
continue to shape and transform local services for
our local communities.

Throughout the year, the CCG has played its
full part in the health and social care system.
We have mobilised across the city and region
in response to the pandemic, focusing on
the provision of support and care to our
local population. But while the past year has
undoubtedly been the most challenging we’ve
ever faced in Leeds, we have continued to build
on our relationships with partners, improving
our collaborative approaches in addressing
inequalities across the city and working to help
people receive the very best health and care
closer to their own homes.

Jason and Tim
Jason Broch, Clinical Chair, NHS Leeds CCG
Tim Ryley, Chief Executive, NHS Leeds CCG

We continue to be very proud of our NHS
partners, particularly our member practices,
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1. Performance report - overview

Tim Ryley
Chief Executive (Accountable Officer)
10 June 2021
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1.1.1 Purpose of overview section

as mental health and long-term condition reviews
within general practice. There is no doubt that
this is going to be an incredibly challenging year
with considerable pressure to address long waits,
a few of which already exceed two years and
many over 52 weeks. Therefore this will remain a
high priority for the foreseeable future.

Welcome to the 2020-21 annual report for NHS
Leeds Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). The
overview section of this report highlights our
approach and achievements during the year
ended 31 March 2021. It gives a snapshot of who
we are, what we do, the challenges we have
faced and what we have done as a result.

Helping protect people from COVID-19 by
delivering the vaccination programme is a key
priority. I’m incredibly proud of the way partners
have once again pulled together to vaccinate
more than 319,000 eligible patients, including
93% of people aged 50 and over (as at 31
March) and to ensure that no one is left behind.
I’d particularly like to recognise the way that
our member practices have responded to the
challenge of the vaccination programme, setting
up local clinics almost overnight and vaccinating
tens of thousands of people while also continuing
to provide essential health services.

1.1.2 Statement from the chief executive
The past year has been the most challenging we
have ever faced in health and care - and in every
other sector. I want to start by acknowledging
the huge effort demonstrated by colleagues
across the system. The hard work, the passionate
commitment to the people of Leeds and the level
of collaboration with other equally committed
partners is something that we should be very
proud of. It is #TeamLeeds at its absolute best.
Of course, the pandemic has inevitably impacted
our performance this year. Admissions to Leeds
Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT), particularly
people requiring intensive care, reached an alltime high during the second surge this winter.
As a result, in Leeds, as across the country,
some services had to be stepped down in
order to continue to provide safe care to those
who needed it most. At the time of writing in
April 2021, we are starting to emerge from the
intensity of the pandemic. We are now starting to
prioritise the planning of the immediate recovery
in terms of waiting lists whilst maintaining the
focus on business as usual and vaccination.

Many other colleagues have continued to work
on routine business in a number of areas. One
particular piece of work to draw attention to
and acknowledge is the Continuing Health Care
Team. All CCGs were challenged to complete
the backlog of assessments arising from the
suspension in the first wave of the pandemic by
the end of March. Leeds had 231 cases. We were
among the first in the country to have completed
these by January.
Although we have missed a number of targets
this year, our overall performance has once
again been strong, and for this, I’d like to thank
all our staff, member practices and partner
organisations, including the local authority,
providers and third sector. The coronavirus
pandemic will continue to impact the NHS, like
every other health system around the world,
for some time, but I know that in Leeds, we will
work together to continue to provide the best
possible care for our residents.

Considerable work on elective waiting lists
is already being done by the West Yorkshire
Association of Acute Trusts (WYAAT) led by the
LTHT Chief Operating Officer. It will be important
that this is connected back into Leeds, especially
the joint management of risk with primary care.
Whilst the major focus of new NHSEI planning
guidance is on elective care recovery and
trajectories (along with vaccination), in Leeds
we will want to ensure that the whole range
of deferred care resulting from COVID-19 is
managed. This includes waiting lists in areas such

Tim Ryley
Chief Executive
NHS Leeds CCG
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1.1.3 The nature and purpose of our
organisation

Provider

2020-21 (£m)

Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust

NHS Leeds CCG (CCG) has successfully completed
its third year of operation as a statutory body,
following the merger of the three previous CCGs
in the city. Our commissioning activities are in line
with the statutory responsibilities outlined in our
constitution.

480

The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust

29

Harrogate and District
NHS Foundation Trust

30

Bradford Teaching Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust

6

Yorkshire Ambulance Services NHS Trust
999, PTS and 111 Contracts

The CCG is made up of 93 member GP practices
(as at 31 March 2021) covering the whole of the
city of Leeds, with a registered population of
around 866,000 people.

43

WYUC and UTC contracts

Our vision is for Leeds to be “a healthy and
caring city for all ages, where people who are the
poorest improve their health the fastest.”
The CCG operates from single premises which it
leases through NHS Property Services, and is colocated with a number of local businesses within
WIRA Business Park at WIRA House, West Park
Ring Road, Leeds, LS16 6EB.
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Leeds and York Partnership
NHS Foundation Trust

112

Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust

114

Prescribing recharges from the
Prescription Pricing Authority

128

Primary care co-commissioning

129

Better Care Fund (Leeds City Council)

25

Funded nursing care

7

Mental health learning disabilities

34

Main areas of commissioned spend

1,146

Other smaller contracts

We commission a range of services for adults and
children including community health services,
planned care, acute services, NHS continuing
care, mental health and learning disability
services.

Total net commissioning spend
(programme budget)

171
1,317

A full list of contracts with providers is available
on request. There have been significant changes
to services contracted in 2020-21 due to
independent sector contracts with Nuffield, Spire,
Yorkshire Clinic and BMI being novated to NHS
England during the year.

We co-commission GP primary care services with
NHSEI. We do not commission other primary
care services such as dental care, pharmacy
or optometry (opticians) which is done by
NHSEI through their local area team, more
commonly referred to as NHSEI North East and
Yorkshire. NHSEI also has the responsibility for
commissioning specialised services such as kidney
care.

1.1.4 Our business model
The CCG is responsible for the strategic planning,
procurement (contracting), monitoring and
evaluation of the performance of a prescribed set
of services that are delivered by a range of NHS,
independent and third sector health and care
providers in order to meet the needs of our local
population.

The following healthcare providers / areas of
spending cover 87% of the CCG’s commissioning
budget:

These providers offer a range of hospital
treatments, rehabilitation services, urgent and
emergency care, community health services,
mental health and learning disability services.
Each year the CCG undertakes a planning process
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that provides the key mechanism for ensuring we
continue to meet our population’s needs within
the resources available to us. This process is now
undertaken within a wider West Yorkshire and
Harrogate health and care system approach to
planning. The following outlines our planning
approach;

In January 2019 the NHS published its Long
Term Plan. The publication of the plan signalled
the increases in investment that the NHS and
the CCG could expect to receive over the next
five years. The Long Term Plan has provided
an opportunity for the CCG to review its
commissioning plans with a greater focus on the
longer term including the Left Shift Blueprint work
based on programmes based population health
management.

A. Development of local planning priorities
framework - our Governing Body review:
• Priorities identified through working with
wider Leeds and West Yorkshire health and
care system
• Our performance against a set of nationally
set NHS standards as set out in the
NHS Planning Guidance (including NHS
Constitution standards)
• The health needs of our population identified
through the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
(JSNA) and as set out within the Leeds Health
and Wellbeing Strategy
• Priorities for health and services as identified
by our clinicians, patients and the public.

The draft plans that we had developed and
submitted for 2020-21 that fit within the context
of our longer term plans for delivering the CCG’s
strategy have been on hold due to the impact of
coronavirus on all NHS services. At the time of
writing in late March, NHSEI had just published
planning guidance for 2021-22. We are currently
working through that guidance and we will adjust
plans accordingly.

1.1.5 Our strategy
We continue to pursue ambitious plans so that
we can help improve the health of our local
communities. Our priorities reflect those of the
Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-2021
and the West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health
and Care Partnership. Our collective ambition is
that “Leeds will be a healthy and caring city for all
ages, where people who are the poorest improve
their health the fastest.”

B. Review of the impact of existing transformation
and service change programmes: the CCG and
partners have a number of ongoing programmes
of work. Each year we review whether these
and other initiatives are helping to deliver our
priorities and to ensure that they will continue
to do so. If we feel this is not the case, we
outline any actions or changes required. These
transformation plans include those developed
within the West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health
and Care Partnership and the Leeds Plan.

To deliver this ambition we will focus resources to:
• Deliver better outcomes for people’s health and
well-being
• Reduce health inequalities across our city

C. Investment planning: developing investment
proposals that support the CCG’s and citywide
priorities.

We will also work with our partners and the
people of Leeds to:
• Focus more on preventing ill health and other
situations that impact on health
• Increase people’s confidence to manage their
own health and well-being
• Deliver more joined up care for the population
of Leeds
• Create the conditions for health and care needs
to be addressed around local neighbourhoods

D. Agree investment profile: prioritising investments
to ensure we target resources on areas that
will have the greatest impact on delivering our
priorities.
E. Sign off: the Governing Body formally signs off
our plans on the basis that they will deliver both
our service and financial objectives.
This process allows us to agree our service
development and investment programme for the
coming year.
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However, under the COVID-19 financial
regime, the CCG was able to put in place local
arrangements for safeguarding some specific
local capacity with non-NHS providers which
were then reimbursed by NHS England, under the
retrospective outside of envelope reimbursement
process.

We want specifically to:
• Reduce avoidable years of life lost (when a
person dies prematurely from a condition that
could be avoided)
• Increase the number of people supported to
manage their own health
• Avoid people with a serious mental illness
dying early

Moving into 2021-22 the CCG and our providers
will continue to receive COVID-19 related support
from Government/NHS England resources for
the first six months of the financial year on a
par with levels received in the last six months of
2020-21. The financial arrangements for the latter
half of 2021-22 remain unclear at this stage of
the planning process. As the NHS now focuses
on the recovery phase of the pandemic, which
has as its main aim the reduction of the backlog
of treatment activity for patients, the 202122 financial regime including funding support
towards recovery will remain very fluid and
therefore uncertain for the CCG and its partners
in Leeds and across West Yorkshire.

• Reduce unnecessary time patients spend in
hospital
• Reduce numbers of preventable hospital
admissions
• Reduce repeat emergency visits to hospital

1.1.6 Financial performance
The financial duties of a CCG are set out by
NHSEI and can be found in the annual accounts
(note 19). The CCG has delivered against all of
these duties despite a very fluid financial regime
invoked by NHS England during the COVID-19
pandemic throughout 2020-21. For the 2020-21
financial year, the CCG continued to contain
annual expenditure within its in-year resource
allocation.

Better Payment Practice Code
The Better Payment Practice Code requires that
all NHS organisations aim to pay all valid invoices
by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of
a valid invoice, which ever is later. We know
how important it is, particularly in the current
economic climate, that we pay suppliers of goods
and services promptly. During 2020-21, in order
to reduce NHS transactional burden and allow
NHS staff to focus on the pandemic response,
intra-NHS cross charges were eliminated and
organisations instead received a combination of
adjusted block contract payments from CCGs and
centrally funded top-ups to cover the lost income.
Consequently, the CCG has seen a significant
reduction in the number of invoices processed
with other NHS organisations.

COVID-19
In 2020-21, the CCG’s increased marginal costs
in relation to responding to the direct impact of
COVID-19 pandemic were £22.3m.
Certain elements of these costs have been
eligible for retrospective reimbursement via
NHSEI under the COVID-19 Financial Regime
arrangements (£16.9m). COVID-19 related costs
for the majority of our NHS healthcare providers
are being reclaimed directly by them. During
2020-21 the CCG budgets for our Independent
Sector Providers were transferred to NHS England
and pooled to respond on a regional footprint to
system capacity needs during the pandemic.
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Contributions

Better Payment Practice Code measure of compliance 2020-21
Number

£000s

NHS Leeds CCG

Leeds City
Council

£000

£000

Non NHS Payables
Total bills paid in the year

17,906

357,682

Total bills paid within target

17,744

355,364

99.10%

99.35%

Percentage of bills paid within
target

CCG Hosted
s75 Agreements

26,489

-

Fund 2

Council Hosted
s75 Agreements

24,066

11,000

47,739

11,000

Total

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in
the Year

1,563

838,127

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid
Within Target

1,549

838,151

99.10%

100.00%

Percentage of NHS Trade
Invoices Paid Within Target

Fund 1

Expenditure

The public sector must pay suppliers within
30 days under the Public Contracts Regulations
2015. For 2020-21 as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic, contracting authorities are required
to look at accelerating these terms to maintain
cash flow and protect jobs (Cabinet Action Note
PPN 02/20, March 2020).

NHS Leeds CCG

Leeds City
Council

£000

£000

Fund 1

CCG Hosted
s75 Agreements

26,489

-

Fund 2

Council Hosted
s75 Agreements

24,066

11,000

50,555

11,000

Total

1.1.7 Financial outlook
NHS Leeds CCG notified allocations for the
2021-22 financial year have been interrupted by
the continuation of the COVID-19 finance regime
into (at least) the first half of the financial year.
An initial balanced expenditure plan has been set
on the basis that the local health system would
work together to deliver a balanced position
collectively and risk share cost pressures as a
collective. However, planning for 2021-22 will
remain fluid while resources being distributed to
systems throughout the first months of the year.
We will need to remain responsive to COVID-19
and backlog clearance activity, pressures and
capacity.

CCG running costs
The running cost envelope for NHS Leeds CCG
during 2020-21 financial year was £16.2 million
but this was temporarily reduced to £14.2m
under the COVID-19 Financial regime for 202021. The total actual spend was £13.7 million, the
underspend against the target being transferred
to support in-year commissioning expenditure.
Better Care Fund
The CCG has entered into a partnership
arrangement with Leeds City Council in relation
to the Better Care Fund (BCF). A partnership
agreement between the two organisations
describes the commissioning arrangements for a
range of health and social care services. The two
funds are hosted by either Leeds City Council or
the CCG. The BCF partnership agreement is based
on the national template developed by NHS
England and Bevan Brittan. All funds are overseen
by a joint BCF Partnership Board.

The NHS is focussing resources in 2021-22
primarily on continuing to treat COVID-19
patients while also addressing the backlog of
patient treatments that have accumulated during
the pandemic period. The CCG simultaneously
operates on the Leeds and West Yorkshire
footprints, both of which are amongst the largest
in the country, with risks and opportunities that
are commensurate with this magnitude.
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New legislation is expected in May 2021 to pave
the way for Leeds CCG (alongside four other
CCGs across West Yorkshire) to transfer all its
statutory functions to a single newly formed
statutory body covering West Yorkshire on 1 April
2022, at which point the CCG will be dissolved.

As at 31 March 2021 the key risks faced by the
CCG were:

The model of operation envisaged for West
Yorkshire is a highly devolved one where the
functions of the newly formed statutory body are
likely to be devolved back to Places, with Leeds
being one of those Places. Places are working
on developing Integrated Care Partnerships to
oversee the delivery of patient care services
functions at Place level.

• Information security maturity, including, risk
to cyber security impacting on availability of
systems and data

• Risk of harm to patients due to the impact of
the pandemic, resulting in potentially increased
morbidity, mortality and widening of health
inequalities

• Capability to manage demand and discharge
volumes during times of high demand.
All identified risks have details of key controls,
how assurance will be given, gaps in controls
and assurance, target risk level, action plans to
address gaps and the risk owner.

It is therefore even more important that the CCG
continues to fully engage at a strategic level
with place-based partners which include Leeds
City Council, Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS
Trust, Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust,
Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation
Trust and a large number of Primary Care, nonNHS, voluntary and third sector organisations to
develop the care partnership system.

1.1.9 Equality, diversity and inclusion
The Equality Act 2010 introduced a Public
Sector Equality Duty, which requires us to
pay due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
advance equality of opportunity; and foster
good relations between people with one or
more protected characteristics, both in relation
to our commissioning responsibilities and our
workforce. The protected characteristics are age,
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and
civil partnership (only with regards to eliminate
discrimination), pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. In
addition we have to publish equality information
annually, demonstrating how we have met the
general public sector equality duty with regard to
both our workforce and the population we serve;
and prepare and publish one or more equality
objectives at least every four years.

At the same time the CCG will continue to
engage with NHSEI Specialised Commissioning
and West Yorkshire partner organisations to
develop a joined-up approach to commissioning
health care services for West Yorkshire and more
specifically the population of Leeds.

1.1.8 Key issues and risks
The governing body assurance framework GBAF - is the key mechanism for identifying and
ensuring the management of risks affecting the
achievement of our strategic objectives. It draws
together the high level risks from a variety of
sources and enables the governing body to focus
on making sure that the impact of these risks
is minimised through appropriate management
action. The GBAF is supported by a risk register
that provides a local record of all potential or
actual organisational risks. More details are in the
annual governance report.

We know Leeds is a very diverse city and
recognise that due to a range of dimensions,
including personal characteristics; lifestyle factors;
social networks; living and working conditions;
and socio-economic and environmental
conditions some communities experience health
inequalities. Health inequalities are differences in
health between people or groups of people.
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We continue to work in partnership with our
NHS provider trusts and have a city wide strategy
to engagement and assessment associated with
EDS2 and a joint panel of ‘Trusted Partners’
who assist us with this process each year. Our
city wide panel consists of representatives from
voluntary sector organisation for and led by
protected characteristic groups (Healthwatch
Leeds, Voluntary Action Leeds, Leeds Involving
People, Forum Central) and Leeds City Council.

We also know that for some people or groups of
people their experience of healthcare and ability
to access healthcare could be improved.
As we aim to achieve our vision ‘working
together locally to achieve the best health
and care in all our communities’, improve
health inequalities; patient experience and access
to healthcare we proactively make sure that
equality, diversity and inclusion are a priority
when designing, planning and commissioning
local healthcare and respect the voices of the
diverse communities we serve.

During our annual assessment and engagement
events, where evidence for EDS2 is presented,
our panel of ‘Trusted Partners’, who attend as
representatives of all diverse communities in
Leeds, proactively and constructively provide
challenge in relation to groups protected by the
Equality Act 2010, vulnerable and seldom heard
groups and subsequently help identify gaps/areas
for improvement.

One of the ways we do this is through proactive
engagement, involvement and consultation with
communities across Leeds, service users and
carers. We also work closely with our voluntary
sector partners to ensure we engage/involve
all our diverse, seldom heard communities and
other vulnerable groups when we are planning;
designing; and commissioning healthcare
services.

We act on the gaps and areas for improvement
identified during our annual engagement and
assessment events and performance updates on
actions we have taken/implemented are provided
annually.

We value and respect our staff, aspire to be
an inclusive employer of choice and to create
a workforce that is broadly representative of
the population of Leeds. We also aim to attract
and develop a flexible, dynamic and responsive
workforce who can lead and support the health
and care system.

We held our citywide EDS2 engagement and
assessment workshop in December 2020 where
we updated on the work we are doing as a CCG
such as the development of the narrowing health
inequalities toolkit and the Shaping Our Future
organisational change that focuses on population
health management techniques which are proven
to assist in narrowing health inequalities.

NHS Equality Delivery System 2
The NHS Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2)
is a performance framework that helps
NHS organisations to improve the services
they commission or provide for their local
communities, consider health inequalities in their
locality and provide better working environments,
free of discrimination, for those who work in the
NHS.

Equality objectives
During 2020-21 we have continued to work
towards our equality objectives 2017-2020.
• To improve the collection, analysis and use of
equality data and monitoring for protected
groups

NHS organisations are required to assess and
grade their equality progress using the NHS EDS2.
The involvement of key stakeholders, representing
the interests of our diverse communities, is an
essential element of this.

• To improve access to NHS services for
protected groups
• To ensure implementation of the Accessible
Information Standard across all commissioned
healthcare providers.
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NHS Workforce Race Equality Standard
In April 2015, the NHS Workforce Race
Equality Standard (WRES) became a mandatory
requirement and now forms part of the
CCG assurance framework. It requires NHS
organisations to demonstrate progress against
nine indicators.

It is intended to positively reinforce the way that
primary care interacts with the LGBT community.
The programme package includes myth-busting
training, support to deliver effective active
signposting and social prescribing for LGBT
communities, and ongoing support.
Monitoring NHS provider organisations
As a commissioner of healthcare, we have a
duty to ensure that our healthcare providers are
meeting their statutory duties under the Equality
Act 2010 Public Sector Equality Duty. As well
as regular monitoring of performance, patient
experience and service access, we work with
them to consider their progress on their equality
objectives. This includes the NHS Equality Delivery
System (EDS2), the NHS Workforce Race Equality
Standard (WRES) and the implementation of the
Accessible Information Standard. Each provider
organisation is subject to the Public Sector
Equality Duty and has published its own data.

Our WRES report 2020 was produced during
October and details performance for 2019-20
against each of the nine indicators, enabling
us to identify specific areas for improvement.
The report for 2020 has been published on our
website. Each year we develop an action plan to
enable us to improve our performance in relation
to all WRES indicators. Progress against our
action plan is monitored throughout the year.
Black Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) Staff
Network
The BAME staff network continues to be
active, and heavily involved in the decision
making processes of the organisation. The
staff network have been trained in recruitment
and are requested to be a part of every panel
for recruitment of band 7 roles and above. In
addition the network continues to play an active
part in key meetings for the organisation such as
the CCG silver command which was established in
response to the pandemic and the Workforce and
Diversity Group.

When procuring new services, we ensure that
service specifications include the requirement to
have robust policies, procedures and working
practices in place to ensure that the needs of
the nine protected characteristics and other
vulnerable groups are adopted. These policies are
examined and approved by procurement teams
and our equality lead prior to any contract being
awarded.

Pride in Practice
During 2020-21 we have continued to work with
the Lesbian, Gay, Bi-sexual and Transgender
(LGBT) Foundation who have delivered the
Pride in Practice pilot project to some of our GP
practices across Leeds.

Accessible Information Standard Working
Group
The Accessible Information Standard Working
Group was established in 2015 to ensure that
there is a consistent approach to implementing
the standard across all GP practices and
commissioned healthcare providers in Leeds.
The group, which included representatives
from primary care teams, contract managers
and quality managers, in addition to a patient
representative and representative from Leeds City
Council, continued to meet during 2020 despite
the pandemic.

Pride in Practice aims to strengthen GP practices’
relationship with their lesbian, gay, bisexual
and transgender (LGBT) patients. Originally
launched by the LGBT Foundation in Manchester
in 2012, Pride in Practice is a training and award
programme designed for primary care services,
including GP practices and pharmacies.
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1.1.10 Emergency preparedness resilience
and response (EPRR)

The CCG has always been an active partner in
citywide pandemic planning and response and is
fully aware of its role in the city’s pandemic plan.
Scenario planning has been an important part of
preparation and response and in October the CCG
and local authority led a system wide desk top
scenario exercise on a COVID-19 mass swabbing
in a university.

The annual EPRR self-assessment against a set of
core standards provides an assurance that NHS
organisations are working to meet their EPRR
statutory duties and obligations. NHS Leeds
CCG was able to declare Substantial Compliance
against the 2019-20 EPRR Core Standards.

The ICC was established to ensure that the CCG
was able to both deliver its responsibilities and
support swift and considerable system level
change in the COVID-19 response. Key CCG teams
came together through nominated individuals
and dealt at pace with the challenges that the
organisation faced. Initially the ICC met daily,
and it continues to meet weekly. Identified
risks and issues are escalated to the CCG Silver,
furthermore in line with the NHSE/I ICC remit,
the CCG ICC scope is of all incident related issues,
including EU Exit.

The assessment for 2020-21 was adjusted in
recognition of the NHS’s continued response
to COVID-19 and the operational demands of
restoring services. The adjusted process was one
of seeking assurance on three areas:
• progress on partially compliant elements from
the previous year’s assessment
• capturing and embedding the learning from
the first wave of the COVID-19 pandemic and
• that key learning actively informed winter
planning preparations.

COVID-19 response
The city’s incident response to COVID-19 is an
example of excellent work by the Leeds system.
It has enabled wider relationships that have
become embedded into city outbreak response
and planning. Examples include the Infection
Prevention Control (IPC) team as members of the
operational bronze group at the height of the
response, and the development of OPEL reporting
into general practice so that the system receives
a rounded view of emerging and sustained
pressures.

NHS Leeds CCG had four individual actions on its
2019-20 EPRR Action Plan, namely:
• an agreed pandemic and outbreak plan for the
organisation (two separate actions)
• established warning and informing processes
to public, patients and staff at a time of an
incident, and
• information sharing protocols, again, during
incidents.
Work had already begun to address these actions
before the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.
The pandemic developed, tested and rehearsed
all of these actions, along with the wider
spectrum of requirements within the EPRR Core
Standards. This enables the CCG to be in a strong
position ahead of the 2021-22 requirement.

In addition, during the most acute phase of the
COVID-19 response communications from the
Executive Team and senior leadership were shared
to all staff on a daily basis to ensure that the most
current position was shared. In the same manner,
at the height of the response and system change,
a daily briefing was developed for primary care
which formalised other communications and was
backed up by a dedicated web resource.

CCG COVID-19 Incident Coordination Centre
(ICC)
The CCG demonstrated its ability and
commitment to deliver its responsibilities through
both mobilisation of the COVID-19 ICC and its
active role in the city wide response.
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members and the significant benefit it made
to address the challenges that the organisation
faced. The review acknowledged the effective
operational arrangements developed by the ICC
that should and will be captured in standard
operating procedures to enable swift set-up in
future.

The CCG works closely with local partners, either
leading or supporting the warning and informing
role. Throughout COVID-19 there have been
numerous social media campaigns.
The CCG hosted a Facebook Live session
with NHS doctors to address misinformation
on COVID-19, and commissioned a full wrap
(front, back and inner) from the local paper.
Where appropriate, and in line with the Level 4
incident, local messages have been developed
from national campaigns. The CCG has reissued
information received from the central command
and control function, localising the information
where appropriate, thus demonstrating local
initiative and confidence.

Learning from the review identified the need for
clarity of structure and governance, as well as the
effective flow of information across the whole
system; this was embraced and informed the
wider command and control planning for winter,
and the establishment of CCG Silver.
Winter preparedness
Key learning identified from the COVID-19
response included the flow of information and a
need for a clear command and control structure.
This was a focus of the city wide command and
control planning ahead of anticipated surge and
winter pressures and ensuring that this was in
place was a priority for the system.

The System Resilience operational response
evolved in response to the pandemic. The weekly
Operational Winter Group (OWG) operated within
the governance profile of SRAB (System Resilience
Assurance Board) and ORG (Operational
Resilience Group) until March 2020. From March
the frequency of the meetings increased and the
scope widened to reflect the increasing outbreak
focus and included a wider group of partners
including health protection, hospices and
commissioning representatives of care homes.

The CCG led a thorough system wide review of
winter 2019-20. The components of this review
included a workshop with a follow up session
and pre-work. Specific focusses were system
communications, data sharing, governance,
risks, reducing health inequalities and admission
avoidance. The review put a spotlight on
opportunities of the COVID-19 response that
would be beneficial to continue and that could
positively impact on the planning and delivery
of winter 20/21. Examples included the use of
technology, sharing staff and collaboration.

The Outbreak Planning Group became the
designated Health and Social Care Bronze
system-wide group by April operating within the
COVID-19 command and control structure (Health
& Social Care Gold and Silver etc.). Following the
passing of the first wave, and allowing time for
a winter review across the summer, the system
resilience operational meeting recommenced as
SROG (System Resilience Operational Group) from
September, but retaining those new links with
health protection and hospices colleagues.

Identified challenges included workforce,
capacity, IPC, PPE and managing surges. The
group then met for a third session to agree
principles and a system approach to plans,
governance and communications.

Review of the CCG’s incident response
arrangements
An internal review of the CCGs incident response
arrangements assessed the views of the
members of the Incident Coordination Centre
against established EPRR principles. The review
highlighted the value placed on the ICC by its

As part of the process each organisation
submitted their winter plans and populated a
winter planning template; these were aggregated,
summarised and built into an action plan.
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1.1.11 Performance summary

EU Exit
A watching brief of any EU Exit related issues
has been maintained across the city, with no
significant operational issues identified. Close
partnership working highlighted some anecdotal
reports of supply issues, but active system
management of emerging issues has so far
negated any impact.

Performance in healthcare
Before the COVID-19 pandemic (2019-20), the
NHS in Leeds made positive steps to improve
upon the speed of access to treatment and to
the quality of healthcare delivered to patients.
In particular referral to treatment times had
improved and treatment waiting lists had been
successfully reduced; cancer performance
standards were on the whole performing well
and screening initiatives were helping to diagnose
more people earlier improving their chance of
survival; access to psychological therapies was
improving following the recent redesign and
procurement of local IAPT provision; and the
number of people with a learning disability
and/or autism reliant upon inpatient care was
reducing.

Command and control arrangements
Command and control arrangements for a
response to the pandemic saw a both a collective
citywide response and a mandatory health and
social care response.
Health and social care command and control
established a Gold Command of all chief officers
in health and social care at the start of the
pandemic in March 2020. Various Silver and
Bronze groups were also established to support
this focusing on areas of ongoing concern such as
primary care and reactive concern such as PPE.

However, following the declaration of a serious,
level 4, incident on 30 January 2020 due to
the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and the consequential response, many areas
of performance were adversely, significantly
affected at the beginning of 2020-21 due to
the requirement to follow national instruction
including the suspension of many routine services
(unless where clinically appropriate / high risk),
either to focus clinical resources in managing
patients with COVID-19 or to support patient and
staff safety.

The health and social care (H&SC) command
and control structures are shared across the
city and have been embedded as part of the
citywide response. Governance and reporting
arrangements al all command and control groups
remain responsive.
The command and control groups have flexed
throughout the year, none more so than last
summer after the first wave and NHS England
planning guidance saw a drive to ‘stabilise and
reset’. The H&SC Stabilisation and Reset Silver
group of chief operating officers across health
and social care was formed replacing H&SC Silver.
This group has continued to switch its focus
throughout the subsequent pandemic waves
to respond to further NHS England Planning
Guidance.

At the end of April 2020, the NHS began to
restart non-COVID-19 urgent services and from
August 2020 further national requirements were
outlined in order to accelerate the return to nearnormal levels of non-COVID-19 health services
and to prepare for winter demand pressures
alongside continuing vigilance in the light of
further COVID-19 spikes.

Both H&SC Gold and Silver continue to meet on
a weekly basis with opportunities for operational
‘check-in’ throughout the week.

Consequently, performance across a range of
key measures in Leeds continues to be under
expected performance levels, significantly so in
particular areas.
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Colleagues from across the CCG have also
stepped forward to support the wider system
response with mutual aid: some continuing care
and quality team nurses returned to front line
work at the height of the pandemic, some staff
with clinical backgrounds are vaccinating patients
and dozens more are volunteering at the PCN
and mass vaccination centres. Currently, 50% of
our clinical pharmacy workforce is involved in the
vaccination programme. The team also helped
with legal aspects of the programme and ensured
that the designated sites were ready.

However, we have observed an improvement in
performance against many of these measures,
typically from the summer months in 2020-21,
as a result of the reinstatement of non-COVID-19
health services.
However, there remain significant challenges
and risks which we are continuing to work
through in order to mitigate their impact. For
example, there were 22 Leeds CCG patients
waiting more than 52 weeks for treatment in
March 2020 yet in January 2021 this number had
increased to 2,778 and we expect this number
to increase further; prior to March 2020 less
than 1% of Leeds patients would typically wait
longer than six weeks for diagnostic tests but
now almost one-third of patients do and the
national expectation of at least 93% of patients
being seen within two weeks of referral for an
urgent cancer appointment with a specialist was
being achieved in March 2020 yet we’re now
observing approximately one-third of patients
having to wait longer than two weeks for their
appointment.

The medicines optimisation team have also been
heavily involved in responding to the pandemic.
For example, they’ve developed a new rapid
taxi service to ensure stock availability and
timely access to end of life medication in light
of the rapid deterioration in some patients with
COVID-19. To support diabetic patients, the team
organised supplies of Ketone meters and strips
to be held at hubs across the city. This meant
susceptible patients could access these quickly if
concerned about their health and avoid going to
hospital. The team have worked alongside clinical
pharmacy colleagues to support GP practices
to introduce electronic Repeat Dispensing
(eRD), which reduced the need for patients to
attend their GP practice. They have also ensured
practices, hospices and other frontline colleagues
have been kept up to date with the latest
medicines guidance and supported community
pharmacy and GP practices to manage
expectations around repeat prescriptions.

Responding to COVID-19
We have worked with partners throughout the
year to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic,
in what has been widely recognised as a true
#TeamLeeds effort.
Our primary care and medicines commissioning
teams have worked closely with their providerfacing counterparts, currently embedded in the
Leeds GP Confederation to support practices
and primary care networks to respond to the
pandemic. At a time when PPE supplies were
causing concern, colleagues established a
PPE procurement and supply chain to ensure
frontline staff were protected. They helped set
up hot hubs for COVID-19 positive patients, have
supported practices with business continuity
and most recently, helped organise hundreds of
vaccination clinics at PCN sites, which, with the
support of hundreds of volunteers, have seen
tens of thousands of Leeds patients vaccinated.

Throughout the year, colleagues in different
teams worked with a range of service providers
to ensure patient safety and care weren’t
compromised by the extreme circumstances
brought about by the pandemic. For example,
despite widespread reports of oxygen shortages,
much work and collaboration behind the
scenes ensured that patients experienced little
or no disruption to supplies at home. Similarly,
such partnership work has also resulted in the
successful rollout of the COVID-19 Oximetry@
Home programme.
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The quality monitoring of services in providers
has also continued and we have maintained
close links and improved partnership working to
minimise the impact of the pandemic response.
Routine quality visits were suspended; however
where necessary in person visits took place
in collaboration with the provider, care home
manager and following risk assessment. The
quality and safety teams also supported the
citywide infection prevention and control team
to provide testing and monitor outbreaks in care
homes, developed a process for remote nurseled verification of death process, and supported
commissioning teams to understand the
associated risk related to stepping up and down
of services during the pandemic, and ensuring a
robust and efficient quality and equality impact
assessment process for rapid service change
and service reset to capture impacts and risks.
The teams also continued to respond to patients
and the public, through a national pause in
the NHS complaints process, to ensure good
communication was maintained, expectations
managed and to ensure immediate safety
concerns were identified and to minimise any
backlog of concerns raised.

Over 1200 oximeters have been issued, and we
know the service has saved lives.
Nationally and locally, we know that the
pandemic has had a significant impact on mental
health. While delivery models changed, services
stayed open throughout the year, and we worked
with partner organisations to help ensure that
services and resources were clearly signposted
and heavily promoted, both on and off-line. For
children and young people, additional funding
has been invested in eating disorder services,
an overnight crisis line, the MindMate wellbeing
service and the development of a service to
support those who have experienced trauma. A
children and young people’s mental health system
call brings together colleagues from across
education, social care, third sector and health to
focus on any system or service issues and share
lessons learned as a result of the pandemic.
We’ve worked hard to ensure that people with
learning disabilities and / or autism have continued
to receive support and care during the pandemic.
Care and treatment reviews have continued and
resilience calls with providers were introduced
to reduce the spread of COVID-19 and manage
any breakouts effectively. Accessible information
about NHS services, social distancing and
vaccinations have been produced and shared
widely. In Leeds, we also supported flexibility
around JCVI priority groups to ensure that
every adult with a learning disability could be
vaccinated. Despite the significant pressure on
primary care, all PCNs have now surpassed the
67% target for all eligible people with a learning
disability to have an annual health check.

Behind the scenes, other teams have also played
a key role in supporting the health and care
system. At the start of the pandemic, our IT
team set up nearly 1000 new devices in three
weeks to enable remote consultations so that
practices could continue to care for patients
safely. Along with business intelligence and data
quality colleagues, the team have continued to
support practices, PCNs and the wider system,
ensuring they have the tools and the data they
need to respond to the pandemic, implement
the vaccination programme and respond to
local issues. Similarly, the communications
and engagement team have led on the city’s
communication plan for COVID-19 and the
subsequent vaccination programme to inform
and engage the public, staff and primary care in
what has often been a fast-moving and changing
situation.

During the past year, safeguarding has continued
to be of paramount importance. With the
increase in phone and video consultations,
the safeguarding team have provided training
and advice around identifying and responding
to concerns. The team have also worked
with colleagues to ensure that essential child
protection work could continue, despite
restrictions.
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They have been working with people to
overcome the impact that both mental
and physical conditions have on their daily
functioning. Some group work has been delivered
such as art sessions at a women’s emergency
accommodation.

As well as supporting national campaigns,
the team have also produced a wide range of
communications resources in response to local
issues, most notably to help ensure no one is left
behind in the vaccination programme.
Tackling health inequalities
The partners in the Leeds health and care system
have worked together during 2020-21 to address
health inequalities. This has been made possible
due to the already strong relationships in Leeds.
Additionally the structures set up to coordinate
the local response to the COVID-19 pandemic have
enabled a consistent focus on health inequalities
and resulted in considerable progress being made.

For the vaccination programme, a specific health
inequalities partnership group from across
health, social care and the third sector and led
by public health was established to oversee the
vaccination programme. It reports to the overall
Leeds COVID-19 Vaccination Programme Steering
group.
In Leeds and nationally, vaccine uptake in
the city is significantly higher in less deprived
communities and less diverse communities. To
help ensure that vaccination coverage is inclusive,
data and soft intelligence from all partners is
being used to identify and drive actions, and
a CCG-led communications strategy has been
developed to ensure all key groups are addressed.
To support the eight PCNs in the most deprived
areas of the city, public health colleagues are
working with clinical directors and local care
partners to identify and overcome barriers and
share best practice. So, for example, pop up and
mobile vaccination clinics have been established
in community sites at the heart of communities;
trusted champions from the NHS, communities
of interest and faith groups are helping address
concerns and vaccine hesitancy. Our partners at
Bevan Healthcare have worked with us, the third
sector and housing providers to vaccinate socially
excluded populations at high risk of COVID-19.
We’re also developing an outreach plan for
other socially excluded groups, for example sex
workers, Gypsies and Travellers.

The Leeds Outbreak Board has a focus on
‘protecting the most vulnerable from COVID-19,
with enhanced analysis and community
engagement, to mitigate the risks associated
with relevant protected characteristics and social
and economic conditions; and better engage
those communities who need most support’.
This reflects one of the eight health inequalities
priorities in the NHS England and Improvement
phase 3 restart letter of July 2020.
A number of COVID-19 response groups - which
all include members from across the Leeds health
and care partnership - have coordinated efforts
and have all had a focus on health inequalities.
The focus of these groups includes the clinically
extremely vulnerable, rough sleepers, financially
vulnerable people, people experiencing mental
ill health, areas of greatest deprivation, over
60s (including culturally diverse communities;
communities who experience more disadvantage;
older people with SMI). People from diverse
communities are both involved and represented in
each group.

While the pandemic and the vaccination
programme have dominated much of our work
during the past year, we have also worked
with partners to agree our approach to safely
restarting services. A stabilisation and reset group
was established in summer 2020 and agreed a
set of principles for all reset. A key principle for
addressing health inequalities is that ‘We will
ensure that reset services are designed to meet
and respond to the needs of local populations,

Additional services for those at risk of or
experiencing homelessness have been
commissioned during the pandemic and the
occupational therapy outreach team based at York
Street Health Practice have continued to work
directly with some of our most vulnerable patients
in settings such as hostels, hotels and public
spaces.
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c) Investment for joint commissioning with Leeds
City Council around key shared priorities.

improve physical and mental health outcomes,
promote wellbeing and reduce and mitigate
health inequalities with particular focus on
new emerging needs such as those who are
continuing to shield, and the needs of smaller
vulnerable groups such as those who are
homeless’.

d) Funding for direct and sustainable
commissioning of third sector organisations to
enable bespoke focused work with vulnerable
and marginalised groups.
To reflect commitment to this set of principles
the CCG specifically invested in a set of new
schemes in 2020-21. These include homeless
outreach, BAME men’s mental health, carers of
and people with mental illness and / or learning
disabilities and vulnerable older people. These are
in addition to the range of schemes and services
that we already fund through a mixture of grants
and joint funding arrangements with the local
authority, for example, sex worker support
service, frailty service, drug and alcohol services,
Gypsy & Traveller advocacy service, ex-prisoner
advocacy service, health and wellbeing
programme for Syrian Refugees and a citywide
social prescribing service.

The group used a simple health inequalities
impact tool and the Leeds model for health
inequalities to ensure recommendations were
targeted at reducing health inequalities. For
example, a key priority was identified around
digital inclusion. A time-limited digital inclusion
task and finish group was set up to look
at a partnership response. This group has
representatives from the City Digital Team,
100% Digital, CCG, Public Health, the Health
Partnerships Team and Local Care Partnership
(LCP) Team. Through the group, a pilot is
being led by the local care partnership team in
Middleton and Beeston around digital inclusion,
linked to an agreed funding of £100k for digital
inclusion through the CCG as part of the Health
Inequalities Framework. Additionally, the City
Digital Team have secured £35k to spend on
kit to put into the 100% Digital kit library to
support care homes and the CCG has identified
£76,000 to expand 100% Digital Leeds capacity
to work with people in a number of rehabilitation
pathways, for example MSK, stroke and cardio.

Engaging people and communities
NHS commissioning organisations have a legal
duty under the National Health Service Act 2006
(as amended) to ‘make arrangements’ to involve
the public in the commissioning of services for
NHS patients (‘the public involvement duty’).
As part of our governance arrangements as a
CCG, we are ordinarily required to prepare an
annual report, which must explain how the public
involvement duty in the previous financial year
has been fulfilled. Requirements for the contents
of annual reports been revised nationally due to
coronavirus and this year our reporting duties
with regards involvement will be outlined in our
annual report on involvement (Involving You).

The CCG Governing Body signed off an ambitious
Health Inequalities Framework in May 2020. The
key commitments in the framework are the four
investment principles which describe how the
CCG with use its investment in a way that reflects
its level of priority within the organisation. These
are:
a) Investment to be devolved to Local Care
Partnership (LCP) level using the principle of
proportionate universalism to tackle health
inequalities at a local level with local solutions.

We are passionate about providing the best
services we can, and committed to understanding
what matters most to our patients, our local
communities, our member practices and our
partners. Good communications and engagement
are a priority for us, and a strong framework,
with clear structures and assurance processes,
plays a key role in making sure that patients and
communities are central to our decision-making.

b) Resources (e.g back-fill, facilitation etc.) to
support groups of clinicians and partners to
redesign disease pathways across providers
and sectors with a view to moving investment
upstream.
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Throughout the pandemic involving people
has remained a priority for the CCG. National
lockdown and restrictions have created
challenges to meaningful involvement and we
have worked closely with our partners to ensure
local people have continued to influence the
decisions we make.

survey to people who were not able to complete
it online. Many people were unable to use online
services to find a new GP practice so our primary
care team ran a telephone line to support people
to re-register.
Find out more about our engagement in
Alwoodley here: www.leedsccg.nhs.uk/
get-involved/your-views/the-avenue-practiceclosure-2021

During 2020-2021 we have:
• Carried out eight engagements, consultations
and deliberative events
• Developed five insight reviews to support
service development
• Provided over 100 other involvement
opportunities, including patient training, PPG
Network meetings and CCG volunteer groups
• Engaged with 5310 people in all our
involvement activities
• Continued to support 14 patient
representatives as part of our CCG volunteer
programme.

In March 2021 we launched our COVID-19
vaccination feedback programme. We are
working with primary care networks and
providers to understand people’s experience of
booking and having the COVID-19 Vaccine. In
addition to providing all our vaccination sites with
feedback postcards we have attended sites with
our volunteers to capture people’s experience.
Our findings are written into a weekly report
and shared with the public, providers and senior
leaders so that we can continue to develop and
improve the vaccination rollout. You can find out
more about our vaccination experience work
here: www.leedsccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/yourviews/vaccination-experiences-2021

In spring 2020 we worked with Leeds Teaching
Hospitals NHS Trust to run a consultation about
maternity and neonatal services in Leeds. Despite
having to cancel a number of public events due
to COVID-19, over 1500 people shared their
views with us through surveys, focus groups and
street work. We used a variety of methods to
share information including easy read documents,
a video and an animation for people with a
learning difficulty. People told us that they
needed better parking and we have increased
spaces by including a maternity services car park
in our plans. Find out more about our maternity
and neonatal engagement here: www.leedsccg.
nhs.uk/get-involved/your-views/maternityleeds

We continue to attend, support and influence
a wide range of citywide groups including the
Communities of Interest Forum, the Healthwatch
Leeds People’s Voices Group and Maternity
Voices Group.
You can read about all our involvement activities
in our annual report on involvement, Involving
You: www.leedsccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/stay-intouch-stay-informed/publications
Working with partners
Our strong and positive relationships with partner
organisations have perhaps never been more
important than during the past year, helping
ensure a true #TeamLeeds response to the
pandemic, the vaccination programme and the
safe restart of services. During the year, we have
continued to work closely with key partners such
as the Leeds GP Confederation, West Yorkshire
and Harrogate Health and Care Partnership,
Scrutiny Board, NHS providers, Leeds City

While many of our involvement activities have
moved online, we have continued to provide
opportunities for people to feedback without
digital technology. Between January and March
2021 we engaged with people in Alwoodley
about changes to their GP practice. We provided
a range of opportunities for people to share their
views including an online survey, public events
and telephone calls. We also posted out the
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Making Leeds a more equal city with more
people benefiting from the life chances currently
enjoyed by the few is at the heart of our vision.
This is why we emphasise the importance of
good health, the need to boost resilience, and
focusing on prevention as a means of enabling
higher quality, person-centred service provision.

Council, community and voluntary organisations,
Healthwatch Leeds, Care Quality Commission,
Leeds Academic Health Partnership, Leeds
Informatics Board and the City Digital Team.
The Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy has
set the focus of our partnership that together
we will make Leeds the best city in the UK for
health and wellbeing, a healthy caring city for all
ages, where the poorest improve their health the
fastest - the best city for all ages, both now and
for future generations.

A social model of health is fundamental to
prevention of poor physical and mental health,
which takes into account influences on health and
wellbeing, including social, cultural, economic,
and environmental factors. We believe that
people are the catalysts for change in their local
communities and within the front-line and should
be actively involved in identifying, planning,
designing and implementing solutions to health
issues and unjust health inequalities. Strategic
alliances of individuals, communities, services,
professionals and local councillors, will be used
and developed further to support this shift.

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy is rooted in
connecting people, communities and places and
a social model of health. This means that in Leeds
we recognise the role of the wider determinants
of health alongside the need for excellent health
services. The CCG plays a key role in delivering
the strategy. We have a strong partnership with
a greater focus on prevention, early support
and care closer to where people live where
appropriate to do so.

Improving health services needs to happen
alongside achieving financial sustainability,
making the best use of the collective resources,
and working more purposefully in an integrated
way to ensure we improve the health and
wellbeing of the people of Leeds.

We support and lead on a number of local
programmes that link in with the NHS Long
Term Plan - for example the developing local
care partnerships - and we have part funded
the city’s neighbourhood networks and older
people’s networks in the community. Together
with Leeds City Council, we commission
services in an integrated way, have several joint
appointments and our working cultures and
practices are increasingly aligned. In keeping
with our role in delivering the strategy, we
ensure our work contributes to the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy’s vision of ‘improving the
health of the poorest the fastest’ by ensuring that
tackling health inequalities is embodied in our
commissioning strategy and supported by the
CCG Governing Body, as outlined above.

As well as a shared ambition, we need a
clearly defined and shared work programme
to collectively own and deliver. This work
programme also needs people centred outcomes
and indicators that are jointly owned and which
can be used to measure our success not just in
the here and now but also improving the health
and wellbeing of the Leeds population over a
longer time period.
In November 2019, the CCG committed on
behalf of the partners to lead the development
of the ‘Left-shift Blueprint’ as one of the
contributions towards delivering our collective
partnership ambition. Over the last 12 months, as
a partnership, we have developed the Left-shift
Blueprint, which sets out how health and care
services will be delivered in Leeds over the next
five years.

However, despite some fantastic work to date,
good health and prosperity in our city is still
not felt by all and there is evidence that some
inequalities are widening and will worsen as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Planning for the future
The CCG’s Shaping Our Future (SOF) programme
was established in late 2019 in recognition of
the fact that despite our best efforts (as a CCG
and with our partners), we have made limited
progress in reducing inequalities and improving
outcomes for people living in Leeds. In early
2020, a huge amount of work was undertaken
with staff to design and describe our future new
operating model. Endorsed by our Governing
Body in July 2020, our new operating model
describes how we will behave differently and
organise ourselves differently to delivery two
strategic capabilities for the city - strategic
planning and system integration - which will
improve population outcomes and reduce
inequalities in the city.

Whilst this work is essential to ensuring a
coherent approach to improving health and
wellbeing outcomes across the city, it is even
more critical that it is undertaken now given the
planned initiatives to rebuild hospital estates
and to understand and address the impact of
the pandemic on health outcomes and health
inequalities.
It is essential that through the Left-shift Blueprint
we develop an agreed model of care for the city
which drives health improvement, meets future
demand and can also be delivered within our
future estates footprint. The Left-shift Blueprint
sets out our system wide ambitions through three
types of strategic indicators: health outcomes,
system activity metrics and quality experience
measures. It is proposed that for each of these
strategic indicators, our ambition is to be as good
as, if not better than the England average, and,
where measurement allows, we will commit to
reducing the gap between Leeds and deprived
Leeds by 10%.

Our new operating model is based on experts
from across the organisation working in matrix
teams with partners to create the conditions
for more person-centred integrated care
and using population health management
(PHM) Approaches to identify and respond to
the biggest opportunities to improve health
outcomes and reduce health inequalities by for
people in Leeds.

Leeds has a long history of successful partnership
working with people at the heart and with
a breadth of assets to enable genuine whole
system change. Most recently, the response to
the Coronavirus pandemic across the city has
once again demonstrated what can be achieved
when heath and care staff from different
organisations and different roles work together,
alongside communities, to achieve shared goals.
There is a strong consensus that our response
to the pandemic offered an opportunity
around integrated clinical working and clinician
engagement that coincides with an ambition to
develop an integrated care partnership (ICP) and
progress health and care integration.

Organisational development (OD) is a key element
of SOF. Throughout 2020-21 we have provided
introductory training for all staff in population
health management and matrix working and
we have also facilitated an OD Accelerator. The
Accelerator has received coaching and technical
support to develop both the technical capability
and leadership behaviours central to establishing
strategic planning and system integration
capabilities for the city. We are now in the final
phase of redesigning our teams and roles across
the organisations to enable experts from across
the organisation to work in matrix teams to
deliver the capabilities required for the city to
achieve its ambition to improve outcomes and
reduce inequalities.

Building on this success, we want to proactively
create the conditions that enable and support
our health and care staff from all professions to
continue to work together, and with people and
communities, to deliver measurable progress
towards our ambition to improve outcomes and
reduce inequalities for our population.

The thinking and work undertaken by the
organisation through SOF fully aligns with the
establishment of integrated care systems (ICSs)

22

a Leeds ICP. This work will require a significant
contribution from all partners at place level and
will also need to develop within the context of
the evolving ICS operating model and national
legislation. However, we and are partners are
committed to the challenge and excited by the
new opportunities we have to make Leeds the
best city in the UK for health and wellbeing.

and integrated care partnerships (ICPs) and will
support a smooth transition from the CCG into
future arrangement from April 2022. The new
arrangements provide an exciting opportunity to
develop and enable closer working relationships
and practice by establishing more formal
integrated care partnership arrangements in Leeds.
The proposed legislative changes outlined in the
February 2021 Health and Social Care White Paper
and the associated development of the West
Yorkshire & Harrogate ICS (WYHICS) operating
model strengthen the case for formalising
integrated care partnership arrangements in
Leeds. From April 2022, ICSs will become statutory
organisations absorbing commissioning functions
currently undertaken by CCGs and NHS England.
Strong place based arrangements (Integrated Care
Partnerships / ICPs) are the cornerstone of the
emerging WYHICS Operating Model.

1.2. Performance analysis optional to omit
Due to the pressures associated with the
coronavirus pandemic, we are omitting the
performance analysis in this year’s annual report.

Central to the proposed WYHICS Operating Model
is that ‘Place’ is the primary unit of planning
and collaboration, with place-level partnerships
working closely with local Health and Wellbeing
Boards. Continuing to have a strong place based
approach is essential to delivering high quality
person centred care, working with people at a
neighbourhood (LCP) level. Within the context
of our shared ambition, our track record of
collaboration and integration and the opportunities
afforded through national reform, a Leeds ICP
could be described as ‘an alliance of health and
care partners that work together to improve the
health outcomes and reduce inequalities of the
population by using our resources collectively to
deliver population health driven integrated care’.
The formalising of existing partnership
arrangement into a Leeds ICP will help us achieve
measurable delivery of our shared ambition (as set
out in the Left Shift Blueprint) by enabling us to
jointly plan and agree how we use our collective
resources to enable clinically-led design and
implementation of initiatives and services that
improve quality, clinical effectiveness and people’s
experience. Much work still needs to be done
to explore, scope and propose options around
the constitution, governance and membership of
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2. Accountability Report

Tim Ryley
Chief Executive (Accountable Officer)
10 June 2021
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2.1 Corporate Governance Report

Jason has lived in the Leeds North area for all of
his life, except for receiving his medical training
at the University of Manchester. Jason lives with
his wife and two children. He spends some of his
spare time in lay leadership positions in two local
schools.

2.1.1 Members Report
From 1 April 2018, NHS Leeds CCG became a
statutory NHS body.

Member profiles

Tim Ryley, Chief Executive
(Accountable Officer)
Tim is CEO of NHS Leeds CCG. He is passionate
about reimaging commissioning in the context
of models of value-based healthcare and
the development of integrated networks
and partnerships. This has led to a strong
commitment in distributive approaches to
leadership both within systems and teams. He
is also interested in exploring how strategy
harnesses and adjusts to the fast-moving digitally
driven world we all now live in and how we can
develop community assets to support health
outcomes.

Dr Gordon Sinclair, Clinical Chair
(to 30 June 2020)
Gordon qualified from Leeds University and
undertook postgraduate training around the
Yorkshire region before taking up a partnership
as a GP in 1993 at Burton Croft Surgery in
Headingley. He was a GP Trainer before becoming
interested in GP-led commissioning in 2005.
He was involved with the development of NHS
Leeds West CCG (April 2013 to March 2018) and
was the chair of the organisation. In this role he
was a founder member of the Leeds Health and
Wellbeing Board.
Dr Sinclair is responsible for ensuring good
governance across the organisation with
a particular focus on clinical leadership in
commissioning decision-making, a clear
commitment to public and patient involvement
at all levels and the development of strong
relationships with other key organisations in the
Leeds health and social care community.

Tim first started working in the NHS 19 years
ago as a primary care service improvement
manager, looking at older people and medicines
management. This followed work in the
charity sector for Age Concern and as a priest
in the Church of England. In the NHS he then
worked in a number of general management
roles including; clinical governance and quality
assurance, risk management and corporate
governance, programme management, strategy,
and planning. Before coming to Leeds he was the
Director for Strategy, Planning, and Corporate
at Stockport CCG acting as the Programme
Director for the Stockport Together partnership
- a national Vanguard site. He has an honour’s
degree in Geography, and Master’s degrees in
Theology and Organisational Effectiveness & Total
Quality Management. Outside work he loves the
outdoors whether on the beaches of Anglesey or
in the mountains of Snowdonia.

Dr Jason Broch, Assistant Clinical Chair
(until 30 June 2020) / Clinical Chair
(from 1 July 2020)
Jason is a GP at Oakwood Lane Medical Practice.
Previously, he was Chair of NHS Leeds North CCG
from 2013 until it merged into the current CCG
in 2018. Jason is passionate about providing the
best possible health outcomes for the people of
Leeds and tackling health inequalities. He has
keen interests in quality improvement, population
health management and healthcare innovation
& technology. Previously acting as Chief Clinical
Information Officer on behalf of the whole Leeds
health & social care economy, he developed
successful projects such as the integrated Leeds
Care Record and award winning integrated
business analytics.
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Jo Harding, Executive Director of Quality
and Nursing
Jo qualified as a registered nurse in 1992 and
subsequently as a registered health visitor
practising clinically in Leeds and York. She
strategically and operationally managed a full
range of acute and community-based services for
15 years across North Yorkshire and York and for
the last six years has worked in commissioning
in Leeds. Jo has a Master’s Degree in Leading
Innovation and Change and seeks to develop
and encourage effective leadership at every level
of the healthcare system. She has a particular
interest in the role of nurses and allied health
professionals as system leaders. Jo is an active
coach and mentor. She is passionate about
improving the quality outcomes for the residents
of Leeds with an emphasis on transforming the
whole NHS system to a model of high quality
integrated health and social care.

Visseh Pejhan-Sykes,
Executive Director of Finance
After qualifying as a Chartered Accountant with
Grant Thornton in Sheffield, Visseh started her
NHS career at the Royal Hallamshire Hospital
in Sheffield (now part of the Sheffield Teaching
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust) in a dual role as
Financial Accountant and Directorate Accountant.
She has since held a number of senior finance
roles, both at deputy director and board level
across a range of NHS organisations, including
mental health, ambulance service, Primary Care
Trust, NHS Executive Regional Office in Trent,
and NHS Leeds West CCG.In addition to her
professional qualifications, Visseh has a Bachelors
degree in Economics and a Masters Degree in
Computer Studies.
Dr Simon Stockill, Medical Director
Dr Simon Stockill grew up in Yorkshire, before
studying medicine at St. Mary’s Hospital Medical
School, Imperial College London and University
College London. After qualifying as a GP he
worked as a lecturer in general practice at
Imperial College London, served on the Board
of Westminster Primary Care Trust and was an
elected member of Westminster City Council.

In her spare time, Jo keeps herself busy with her
seven step grandchildren, as a carer for her father,
cooking, reading and chairing the local social
committee designing an annual programme of
family events.
Jenny Cooke, Director of Population
Health Planning (from March 2021)
As a graduate of the University of Leeds, Jenny
returned to work in the city in early 2021 to
take up the role of Director of Population Health
Planning. Prior to this Jenny held a range of roles
in NHS organisations in Surrey, Sussex and London
covering areas such as Integrated Care, Primary
Care and Urgent Care. Most recently Jenny was
the Programme Director for the East London NHS
Foundation’s Trust community mental health
transformation programme, pioneering new
models of care for people with serious mental
illness.

He has a post-graduate degree in population
health from the University of York, and was
Clinical Chair of NHS Leeds Primary Care Trust
before becoming Medical Director of NHS
Leeds CCG. He has a national role as the Clinical
Champion for Quality Improvement at the Royal
College of GPs.
Simon spent over 10 years as a GP in Leeds. In
April 2016 he moved to a new practice near
Whitby in order to remove any conflicts of
interest, as the CCG took over responsibility for
commissioning primary care medical services. He
still works two days a week as a GP and is the
clinical director of the Whitby Coast and Moors
Primary Care Network. Outside medicine he is
a trustee of the National Youth Theatre and is a
keen gardener.

Jenny has an MSc in Healthcare Leadership
and is a qualified Improvement Coach. Jenny’s
professional interests are in understanding how
health and care systems can harness improvement
science to make an impact on population health,
as well involving service users and citizens in how
we undertake system re-design.
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Yorkshire and the Humber. She is a member of
the Joint Independent Audit Committee for the
South Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner’s
office. She also undertakes tutoring on postgraduate qualifications for the Health Finance
Managers Association.

Outside of work Jenny enjoys cycling, running,
and hiking - anything that gets her outdoors and
active, but balances this with a love for cooking
and baking.
Sue Brear, Lay Member
(Audit and Conflicts of Interest Matters) (until
31 May 2020)
Sue Brear started in post on 1 June 2019. Sue is
Chair of the Audit Committee and the Auditor
Panel and is also a member of the Governing
Body, Primary Care Commissioning and
Remuneration & Nomination Committees.

Samantha Senior, Lay Member
(Primary Care Co-Commissioning)
Samantha has experience of holding lay member
roles within the NHS; however, for most of her
career she has worked in the private sector
covering a range of human resources (HR) roles,
which include service management roles. She
has experience of working on cross-functional
projects and she is professionally qualified to MSC
level in HR.

Sue is a qualified accountant (FCCA), Fellow of
the Chartered Insurance Institute, chartered risk
manager and a data protection practitioner. She
brings a wealth of experience of audit, corporate
governance, risk management and legal &
regulatory considerations and has worked in the
public, private and educational sectors including
the NHS, local government, Leeds Beckett
University and financial services.

Samantha joined the CCG in April 2018 as Lay
Member for Primary Care Co-Commissioning
and Deputy Chair. Samantha is Chair of the
Primary Care Commissioning Committee and the
Remuneration & Nomination Committee; she is
also a member of the Audit Committee.

She has two daughters and three grandchildren
and in her leisure time she likes to keep fit, play
golf and socialise with her family and friends.

Angela Collins, Lay Member
(Patient and Public Participation)
Angela has worked in social research for over
19 years. In her previous role as a research
director at an independent research organisation,
she completed a range of research projects for
the NHS, CCGs, local authorities and voluntary
organisations. She developed her love of
governance during her time as a trustee for York
CVS and in her role of local consumer advocate
for the Consumer Council for Water. In October
2017 Angela began a research council funded
PhD in Social Policy and Criminology.

Cheryl Hobson, Lay Member
(Audit and Conflicts of Interest Matters) (from 1
November 2020)
Cheryl has been a qualified accountant since
1991 and she gained an MBA with the University
of Hull in 2001. She has 25 years’ experience
in senior leadership within local government,
working at director and assistant director level
in finance and commissioning focused on
social care and integrated children’s services.
She has experience within the NHS as Chief
Finance Officer at NHS Barnsley CCG and held
responsibility for business and corporate services
at embed Health Consortium for CCG clients
across Yorkshire and the Humber.

Angela joined the CCG in April 2018 and is Lay
Member for Public and Patient Participation, as
such she chairs the Patient Assurance Group.
She is also a member of the Primary Care
Commissioning Committee, Remuneration and
Nomination Committee and the Quality and
Performance Committee.

As well as her role as lay member for Audit and
Conflicts of Interest at NHS Leeds CCG Cheryl
undertakes a voluntary role as Vice-Chair of
a multi-academy trust with academies across
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Dr Phil Ayres, Secondary Care Specialist Doctor
A graduate of Leeds Medical School, Phil trained
to be a GP at Airedale hospital and was a partner
in general practice in Leicestershire. After retraining in public health he took up a consultant
post at St James’s Hospital in 1996, where he
remained until March 2018. During that time
Phil worked as a senior medical manager for
nearly 20 years, as Associate and Deputy Medical
Director to Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust.
He was the Interim Medical Director at Leeds
Community Healthcare NHS Trust immediately
prior to joining the CCG. He has also worked as
an Associate Medical Director at the Commission
for Health Improvement (now the Care Quality
Commission) and at the former Yorkshire and
Humber Strategic Health Authority, where Phil
led the implementation of medical revalidation
(relicensing) for doctors in the region.

to local needs, tackling health inequalities and
working closely with secondary care providers.
Dr Julianne Lyons
Julianne qualified in Glasgow in 1988 and
completed her GP training in the West of Scotland,
where she was a partner in an inner city practice in
Glasgow. When she relocated to Yorkshire in 2002
she worked in various practices before joining
Leeds Student Medical Practice, where she is now
a partner. Her clinical interests are sexual and
reproductive healthcare and mental health.
She has a Masters degree in Healthcare
Management and is keen to become involved in
improving care for patients locally. She is involved
in medical education for doctors, nurses and
healthcare assistants. She is also interested in
medical law and ethics and its impact on service
provision for patients. Out of work Julianne enjoys
spending time with family and their dog and
travelling.

Phil’s main interests are around the role of
doctors in leading health services to achieve best
quality care, the development of collaborative
relationships between providers of care, and
professional standards for doctors.

Dr Keith Miller
Keith was born and grew up in Leeds and
completed a degree in English Literature in Durham
before altering course to study medicine. He
carried out his postgraduate training throughout
Leeds and Yorkshire, and qualified as a GP in
2010. He subsequently became a partner in the
practice in which he trained in Headingley where
he worked until he accepted a new partnership
in Wetherby last year. He is a GP trainer and has
a particular area of clinical interest in the care of
older people.

Member representatives
Dr Ben Browning
Ben studied Medicine at Nottingham University,
qualifying in 1992, before moving back to his
home territory of Leeds to pursue a career in
general practice in 1993. He has been a partner
at Lofthouse Surgery for 24 years, delivering
medical care to a large and diverse practice
population. Ben has much relevant experience,
both medically and in working within the world
of commissioning. He has been the practice
lead from a commissioning point of view since
its earliest time, playing an active role in what
was Leodis, working on developing ambulatory
pathways and urgent care.

Keith has been a GP Member Representative
on the CCG Governing Body since July 2018. He
previously held roles as a GP Extensivist in Greater
Manchester, clinically leading a new service to
improve care for people with complex healthcare
needs. Prior to that, he was the clinical lead for
improving care for older people and those living in
care homes in West Leeds.

Ben worked as a non-executive director on NHS
Leeds South and East CCG board (April 2013 to
March 2018) in addition to his full time GP role.
He is passionate about the provision of excellent
quality medical care to his patients, responding
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Sabrina Armstrong, Director of Organisational
Effectiveness
Sabrina has a broad range of corporate NHS
experience, having gained her skills in a diverse
range of provider, regional and national NHS
organisations over the past 20 years. A former
journalist and communications professional by
background, Sabrina has also gained extensive
corporate and programme management skills.
She has successfully led and managed a number
of teams, overcoming challenges and developing
staff into more senior roles.

He has two young sons who keep him busy
outside of work, has signed up to Land’s End to
John O’Groats virtual running challenge, and is an
ever-suffering/celebrating fan of Leeds United.

Governing Body non-voting
attendees
Helen Lewis, Interim Director of Acute &
Specialist Commissioning
(from 16 January 2020 - November 2020) /
Director of Pathway Integration
(from November 2020)
Helen joined the NHS in 1988 as a general
management trainee and has a wide range
of experience within the NHS. She started
work in London, where she worked in acute,
community and mental health posts, in a mixture
of corporate and operational roles. She moved
to Leeds in 1994 and worked at the Nuffield
Institute for Health on a series of research and
development projects. She then worked at Leeds
Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust for many years,
both on emergency services redesign and on
planned care improvements.

Sabrina is committed to ensuring the involvement
of patients and communities in their local health
services and making sure they have a say in
how services continue to be developed. As an
executive coach and a certified practitioner in
neuro-linguistic programming (NLP), Sabrina
recognises the importance of staff development
and uses these skills in doing so.
Katherine Sheerin, Interim Director of System
Integration (until July 2020)
Katherine has worked in the NHS for over 27
years, working in a number of roles in primary
care development, commissioning and system
redesign. She was Accountable Officer for
Liverpool CCG from 2012 - 2017 where she led
the ‘Healthy Liverpool’ Programme which set out
to improve health outcomes, reduce inequalities,
improve quality and sustain services clinically and
financially. This had several successes including
improving outcomes for people with cancer
and reducing inequalities across the city, and
significantly reducing avoidable hospital care.
Since then, Katherine has worked across the
Leeds system where she initially worked for
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust as a strategic
advisor, supporting them to understand their role
in a more integrated system of care, followed
by roles supporting the provider system more
generally and for the CCG.

Since moving to commissioning, Helen has had a
couple of different roles. She was formerly NHS
Leeds West CCG’s lead for acute commissioning
for the city, before becoming head of
commissioning for planned care and long term
conditions for the newly formed NHS Leeds CCG.
Her particular interest is in ensuring improved
care for patients where their pathways cross
between multiple providers. She was appointed
as Interim Director of Operational Delivery in
January 2020 and Director of Pathway Integration
in November 2020.
Helen has served as a school governor and is
currently vice chair of a local welfare charity. As a
Leeds resident, who is also an informal carer and
a parent, she has direct experience of the NHS
in Leeds and is committed to working to create
ongoing improvement.
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Dr Ian Cameron, Director of Public Health (until
29 February 2020)
Dr Ian Cameron is the Director of Public Health at
Leeds City Council. As part of his role he provides
public health leadership and advice to the CCG on
health improvement, health protection and public
health. Ian has been Director of Public Health for
Leeds since 2006 and is a member of the Leeds
Health and Wellbeing Board and Chair of the Leeds
Health Protection Board.
Ian qualified from Liverpool University and became
consultant in public health in Leeds in 1992 with
a focus on mental health, physical disabilities and
learning disabilities. In 2002 Ian became Director
of Public Health for North West Leeds Primary Care
Trust. Ian has significant experience of working
within public health nationally, and internationally
and in 2008 was made visiting Professor at the
Institute of Public Health, Lahore, Pakistan for his
work on tobacco control.
Victoria Eaton, Director of Public Health
Victoria has been in post as Director of Public
Health at Leeds City Council from 1st March 2020
She previously held the role of Deputy Director of
Public Health, and Consultant in Public Health in
Leeds since 2007. Victoria has worked in a range of
public health roles in Leeds since 1998, following
previous public health appointments in the West
Midlands and Yorkshire and Humber regions.
Before training in public health, Victoria’s early
career was in NHS leadership and management in
the North West region.
Throughout her career, Victoria has had a strong
commitment to addressing health inequalities
and the social determinants of health, and their
impact on physical and mental health. During her
time in Leeds, she has established award-winning
public mental health and community health
development programmes, as well as leading work
to ensure core public health services are shaped
and informed by population needs. She has taught
on several academic public health programmes,
and maintains a strong involvement in workforce
development, training and education in public
health at a regional and national level.
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Member practices
As at 31 March 2021, our 93 GP member
practices are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Abbey Grange Medical Practice
Aire Valley Surgery
Aireborough Family Practice
Allerton Medical Centre
Ashton View Medical Centre
The Avenue Surgery
The Beech Tree Medical Practice
Beeston Village Surgery
Bellbrooke Surgery
Bramham Medical Centre
Bramley Village Health and Wellbeing Centre
Burley Park Medical Centre
Burton Croft Surgery
Chapeltown Family Surgery
Chevin Medical Centre
Church Street Surgery
City View Medical Practice
Collingham Church View Surgery
Colton Mill Medical Centre
Conway Medical Centre
Craven Road Medical Centre
Crossley Street Surgery
Drighlington Medical Centre
East Park Medical Centre
The Family Doctors
Fieldhead Surgery
Foundry Lane Surgery
Fountain Medical Centre
The Gables Surgery
The Garden Surgery
Garforth Medical Centre
Gibson Lane Practice
Gildersome Health Centre
Guiseley and Yeadon Medical Practice
Oulton Surgery
Park Edge Practice
The Practice at Harehills Corner
Priory View Medical Centre
Robin Lane Medical Centre

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Roundhay Road Surgery
Rutland Lodge Medical Practice
Shadwell Medical Centre
Shaftesbury Medical Centre
Shakespeare Community Practice - One
Medicare
Southbank Surgery
South Queen Street Medical Centre
Alwoodley Medical Centre
Armley Medical Centre
The Arthington Medical Centre
Ashfield Medical Centre
Hawthorn Surgery
High Field Surgery
Hillfoot Surgery
Hyde Park Surgery
Ireland Wood and Horsforth Medical Practice
Kippax Hall Surgery
Kirkstall Lane Medical Centre
Laurel Bank Surgery
Leeds City Medical Practice
Leeds Student Medical Practice
Leigh View Medical Practice
Lincoln Green Medical Centre
Lingwell Croft Surgery
Lofthouse Surgery
Manor Park Surgery
Manston Surgery
Meanwood Health Centre
The Medical Centre
The Menston and Guiseley Medical Practice
Moorfield House Surgery
Morley Health Centre
Mulberry Street Medical Practice
Newton Surgery
North Leeds Medical Practice
Nova Scotia Medical Centre
Oakley Medical Centre
Oakwood Lane Medical Practice
Oakwood Surgery
One Medicare (The Light)
Spa Surgery

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
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St Martins Practice
Street Lane Practice
Sunfield Medical Centre
Thornton Medical Centre
Vesper Road Surgery
West Leeds Family Practice
Westgate Surgery
Wetherby Surgery
Whitehall Surgery
Windmill Health Centre
Windsor House Group Practice
Woodhouse Medical Practice
York Street Health Practice

Composition of Governing Body

Committee(s), including Audit Committee

Members of the Governing Body are as follows:

The Audit Committee provides the Governing
Body with an independent and objective view of
the CCG’s system of internal control for financial
governance and corporate governance.

• Clinical Chair - Dr Gordon Sinclair (until 30.06.20)
/ Dr Jason Broch (from 01.07.20)
• Accountable Officer -Tim Ryley

The Audit Committee is chaired by the Lay
Member - Audit and Conflicts of Interest; the
other members are the Lay Member - Primary
Care Co-Commissioning and a Member
Representative. Each member of the Audit
Committee is also a member of the Governing
Body. In attendance at each meeting is the CCG
Chief Finance Officer as well as representatives
from internal audit, external audit and counter
fraud.

• Chief Finance Officer - Visseh Pejhan-Sykes
• Secondary Care Specialist Doctor - Dr Phil Ayres
• Executive Director of Quality and Nursing Jo Harding
• Lay Member (Audit and Conflicts of Interest) Sue Brear (until 31.05.20) / Cheryl Hobson (from
01.11.20)
• Lay Member (Patient and Public Participation) Angela Collins

The work of the Audit Committee includes
ensuring that there is an effective internal audit
function; reviewing the work and findings of
the external auditors; ensuring that the CCG has
adequate arrangements in place for countering
fraud; monitoring the integrity of the financial
statements of the CCG; and overseeing risk
management arrangements.

• Lay Member (Primary Care Co-commissioning/
Deputy Chair) - Samantha Senior
• Up to two additional Lay Members - Vacant
• Assistant Clinical Chair - Dr Jason Broch (until
30.06.20)
• Three Member Representatives - Dr Ben
Browning, Dr Julianne Lyons, Dr Keith Miller

Details of the membership of all committees,
including the Remuneration Committee, are
included in the Governance Statement.

• Medical Director - Dr Simon Stockill
• Director of Population Health Planning Jenny Cooke (from 01.03.21)

Register of interests

Non-voting attendees:
• Interim Director of Acute and Specialist
Commissioning (until 31.10.20) / Director of
Pathway Integration (from 01.11.20) - Helen
Lewis

NHS Leeds CCG wishes to ensure that decisions
made by the CCG are taken and seen to be
taken without any possibility of the influence of
external or private interest. The CCG has therefore
put arrangements in place to ensure that conflicts
of interest are appropriately managed with
transparency and proportionality.

• Interim Director of System Integration Katherine Sheerin (until 02.07.20)

We have established a register of interests which
is outlined within the CCG’s policy on managing
conflicts of interest. This register is reviewed
by the Audit Committee. All Governing Body
members, Committee members, employees
and member practices are asked to complete
a declaration of interest form to identify any
potential conflicts of interest.

• Director of Organisational Effectiveness Sabrina Armstrong
• Director of Public Health (Leeds City Council) Victoria Eaton
The Governing Body has responsibility for ensuring
that the group has appropriate arrangements in
place to exercise its functions effectively, efficiently
and economically and in accordance with the
principles of good governance.
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2.1.2 Statement of Accountable Officer’s
Responsibilities

CCG Governing Body members are also asked
to declare any conflicts of interest with regards
to agenda items at each Governing Body
and Committee meeting. The CCG register of
interests can be viewed on the CCG website at:
www.leedsccg.nhs.uk.

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as
amended) states that each CCG shall have an
Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be
appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board
(NHSEI). NHSEI has appointed the Chief Executive
(Tim Ryley) to be the Accountable Officer of NHS
Leeds CCG.

The internal auditors reviewed the CCG’s conflict
of interest arrangements during 2020-21 and the
overall rating was high assurance.

The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer are
set out under the National Health Service Act
2006 (as amended), Managing Public Money and
in the Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable
Officer Appointment Letter. They include
responsibilities for:

Personal data related incidents
The CCG has reported one personal data related
incidents to the Information Commissioner’s
Office during 2020-21, however no important
action has been taken by the ICO.

Statement of disclosure to auditors

• The propriety and regularity of the public
finances for which the Accountable Officer is
answerable,

Each individual who is a member of the CCG
at the time the Members’ Report is approved
confirms:

• Keeping proper accounting records (which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Clinical
Commissioning Group and enable them to
ensure that the accounts comply with the
requirements of the Accounts Direction),

• so far as the member is aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the CCG’s
auditor is unaware that would be relevant for
the purposes of their audit report
• the member has taken all the steps that they
ought to have taken in order to make him or
herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the CCG’s auditor is aware
of it.

• Safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning
Group’s assets (and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities).
• The relevant responsibilities of accounting
officers under Managing Public Money,

Modern Slavery Act
NHS Leeds CCG fully supports the Government’s
objectives to eradicate modern slavery and
human trafficking but does not meet the
requirements for producing an annual slavery
and human trafficking statement as set out in the
Modern Slavery Act 2015.

• Ensuring the CCG exercises its functions
effectively, efficiently and economically (in
accordance with Section 14Q of the National
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended))
and with a view to securing continuous
improvement in the quality of services (in
accordance with Section 14R of the National
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended)),
• Ensuring that the CCG complies with its
financial duties under Sections 223H to 223J
of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as
amended).
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Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as
amended), NHSEI has directed each CCG to prepare
for each financial year a statement of accounts in
the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts
Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals
basis and must give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the CCG and of its income and
expenditure, Statement of Financial Position and
cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accountable Officer
is required to comply with the requirements of the
Government Financial Reporting Manual and in
particular to:
• Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS
England, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis
• Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable
basis
• State whether applicable accounting standards
as set out in the Government Financial Reporting
Manual have been followed, and disclose and
explain any material departures in the accounts
• Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis
• Confirm that the Annual Report and Accounts as
a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and
take personal responsibility for the Annual Report
and Accounts and the judgements required
for determining that it is fair, balanced and
understandable.
As the Accountable Officer, I have taken all the
steps that I ought to have taken to make myself
aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that NHS Leeds CCG’s auditors are aware
of that information. So far as I am aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the auditors are
unaware.

Tim Ryley
Chief Executive (Accountable Officer)
10 June 2021
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2.1.3 Governance Statement

Governance arrangements and
effectiveness

Introduction and context

The main function of the governing body is to
ensure that the group has made appropriate
arrangements for ensuring that it exercises its
functions effectively, efficiently and economically
and complies with such generally accepted
principles of good governance as are relevant
to it.

NHS Leeds CCG is a body corporate established
by NHS England on 1 April 2018 under the
National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).
The clinical commissioning group’s statutory
functions are set out under the National Health
Service Act 2006 (as amended). The CCG’s
general function is arranging the provision
of services for persons for the purposes of
the health service in England. The CCG is, in
particular, required to arrange for the provision
of certain health services to such extent as it
considers necessary to meet the reasonable
requirements of its local population.

The Governing Body
Our governance structure is headed by the
Governing Body to which our 93 (as at 31 March
2021) member practices have formally delegated
their statutory responsibilities within our
Constitution.

As at 1 April 2021, the clinical commissioning
group is not subject to any directions from NHS
England issued under Section 14Z21 of the
National Health Service Act 2006.

Members of the Governing Body are as follows:

Scope of responsibility

• Chief Finance Officer - Visseh Pejhan-Sykes

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility
for maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement of the
clinical commissioning group’s policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds
and assets for which I am personally responsible,
in accordance with the responsibilities assigned
to me in Managing Public Money. I also
acknowledge my responsibilities as set out
under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as
amended) and in my Clinical Commissioning
Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter.

• Secondary Care Specialist Doctor Dr Phil Ayres

I am responsible for ensuring that the clinical
commissioning group is administered prudently
and economically and that resources are applied
efficiently and effectively, safeguarding financial
propriety and regularity. I also have responsibility
for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control within the clinical commissioning
group as set out in this governance statement.

• Up to two additional Lay Members - Vacant

• Clinical Chair - Dr Gordon Sinclair (until
30.06.20) / Dr Jason Broch (from 01.07.20)
• Accountable Officer -Tim Ryley

• Executive Director of Quality and Nursing Jo Harding
• Lay Member (Audit and Conflicts of Interest) Sue Brear (until 31.05.20) / Cheryl Hobson
(from 01.11.20)
• Lay Member (Patient and Public Participation) Angela Collins
• Lay Member (Primary Care Co-commissioning/
Deputy Chair) - Samantha Senior
• Assistant Clinical Chair - Dr Jason Broch
(until 30.06.20)
• Three Member Representatives - Dr Ben
Browning, Dr Julianne Lyons, Dr Keith Miller
• Medical Director - Dr Simon Stockill
• Director of Population Health Planning Jenny Cooke (from 01.03.21)
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Non-voting attendees:

Member Name

• Interim Director of Acute and Specialist
Commissioning (until 31.10.20) / Director of
Pathway Integration (from 01.11.20) Helen Lewis

Attendance
(eligible to
attend)

Voting Members

• Interim Director of System Integration Katherine Sheerin (until 02.07.20)
• Director of Organisational Effectiveness Sabrina Armstrong
• Director of Public Health (Leeds City Council) Victoria Eaton
The Governing Body has responsibility for
ensuring that the group has appropriate
arrangements in place to exercise its functions
effectively, efficiently and economically and
in accordance with the principles of good
governance.
The Governing Body met six times during
2020-21:

Dr Gordon Sinclair - Clinical Chair (Chair)
Until June 2020

1 (1)

Dr Jason Broch - Assistant Clinical Chair
Chair from July 2020

6 (6)

Dr Julianne Lyons - Member
representative

6 (6)

Dr Ben Browning - Member
representative

6 (6)

Dr Keith Miller - Member representative

6 (6)

Dr Phil Ayres - Secondary Care
Specialist Doctor

5 (6)

Angela Collins - Lay member; PPI

6 (6)

Samantha Senior - Lay member;
Primary Care Co-Commissioning

6 (6)

Tim Ryley - Chief Executive

6 (6)

Visseh Pejhan-Sykes - Chief Finance
Officer

6 (6)

Jo Harding - Executive Director of
Quality & Nursing

6 (6)

Dr Simon Stockill - Medical Director

5 (6)
*Deputy sent

Cheryl Hobson -Lay member;
Audit & CoI From November 2020

3 (3)

Jenny Cooke - Director of Population
Health Planning

1 (1)

Non-Voting Members
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Sabrina Armstrong, Director of
Organisational Effectiveness

5 (6)

Helen Lewis - Director of Pathway
Integration

6 (6)

Victoria Eaton - Director of Public Health

5 (6)

Katherine Sheerin, Director of System
Integration. Until June 2020

1 (1)

Katherine Sheerin
Director of System Integration

6 (6)

Sabrina Armstrong
Director of Organisational Effectiveness

6 (6)

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee provides the Governing
Body with an independent and objective view of
the CCG’s system of internal control for financial
governance and corporate governance.

The Audit Committee met six times during
2020-21:

Member Name

The Audit Committee is chaired by the Lay
Member - Audit and Conflicts of Interest; the
other members are the Lay Member - Primary
Care Co-Commissioning and a Member
Representative. Each member of the Audit
Committee is also a member of the Governing
Body. In attendance at each meeting is the CCG
Chief Finance Officer as well as representatives
from internal audit, external audit and counter
fraud.

Attendance
(eligible to
attend)

Dr Keith Miller - Member representative

6 (6)

Cheryl Hobson - Lay member; Audit &
Conflicts of Interest (from November
2020) (Chair)

2 (2)

Sue Brear - Lay member; Audit & Conflicts
of Interest (until May 2020) (Chair)

1 (1)

Samantha Senior - Lay member; Primary
Care Co-Commissioning

6 (6)

Remuneration and Nomination Committee
The Remuneration and Nomination Committee
makes decisions on the remuneration, including
terms, conditions, pay and allowances (e.g.
any pension scheme it might establish as an
alternative to the NHS pension scheme) and
redundancy/severance, of non-employee
members of the Governing Body.

Members of the Audit Committee are as follows:
• Lay Member (Audit and Conflicts of Interest)
- Sue Brear (until 31.05.20) / Cheryl Hobson
(from 01.11.20)
• Member Representative - Dr Keith Miller
• Lay Member (Primary Care Co-commissioning/
Deputy Chair) - Samantha Senior

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee
also makes recommendations to the CCG
Governing Body on decisions about the
remuneration, including terms, conditions, pay
and allowances (e.g. any pension scheme it
might establish as an alternative to the NHS
pension scheme) and redundancy/severance, of
all employees (including employee members of
the Governing Body) and people who provide
services to the CCG.

During the period of 1 June to 31 October
2020, Sam Senior acted up as Chair of the
Audit Committee while recruitment to the Lay
Member, Audit & Conflicts of Interest roles was
undertaken. This was formally approved by the
Governing Body.
The work of the Audit Committee includes
ensuring that there is an effective internal audit
function; reviewing the work and findings of
the external auditors; ensuring that the CCG has
adequate arrangements in place for countering
fraud; monitoring the integrity of the financial
statements of the CCG; and overseeing risk
management arrangements.

In respect of nomination, the committee ensures
that there is balance of skills, experience and
knowledge of the Governing Body, undertaking
succession planning, overseeing the appointment
process for Governing Body members and setting
the terms of office for these members.
The committee is chaired by the lay member;
primary care co-commissioning; the other
members are the clinical chair, audit lay member,
PPI lay member and a member representative.

37

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee
met four times during 2020-21:

Member Name

The committee defines reasonable assurance as
evidence that performance / quality is in line with
agreed targets or trajectories, or where it is not,
there is reasonable mitigation and an action plan
to rectify any issues (the committee agrees on a
case by case basis what constitutes reasonable
mitigation).

Attendance
(eligible to
attend)

Dr Gordon Sinclair - Clinical Chair
(until June)

2 (2)

Dr Jason Broch - Clinical Chair
(from July 2020)

2 (2)

Dr Keith Miller - Member representative

4 (4)

Cheryl Hobson - Lay member;
Audit & Conflicts of Interest
(from November 2020)

1 (1)

Sue Brear - Lay member; Audit & Conflicts
of Interest (until May 2020)

1 (1)

Samantha Senior - Lay member; Primary
Care Co-Commissioning (Chair)

4 (4)

Angela Collins - Lay member; PPI

4 (4)

Where the committee receives insufficient
assurance, it challenges, assesses risks and
escalates to the Governing Body or Primary Care
Commissioning Committee if necessary. The
Committee recognised the significant impact
COVID-19 has had upon quality assurance
along with the crossover of performance data.
National reporting was paused during the
year and planning guidance was delayed until
autumn 2021. The Committee recognised that
all mitigating actions to increase assurance have
been taken during the pandemic.
The Quality and Performance Committee met five
times during 2020-21:

Quality and Performance Committee
The Quality and Performance Committee is
responsible for the monitoring and oversight of:

Member Name

• The quality and performance of commissioned
services including patient experience, safety
and clinical effectiveness
• The effectiveness and performance of
commissioned services
• The performance of the CCGs and their delivery
of agreed outcomes.
The membership includes at least three nonexecutive or lay governing body members,
the Executive Director of Quality and Nursing,
Director of Pathway Integration, Director of
Organisational Effectiveness and Medical Director.

Dr Ben Browning - Member representative

5 (5)

Angela Collins - Lay member; PPI

5 (5)

Dr Phil Ayres Secondary Care Specialist Doctor (Chair)

4 (5)

Jo Harding Executive Director of Quality & Nursing

4 (5)
Deputy sent
to 1 meeting

Dr Simon Stockill - Medical Director

The committee receives the integrated quality
and performance report at each meeting as well
as regular updates on providers under enhanced
quality surveillance, risks relating to quality and
performance and patient experience.
In fulfilling its role the committee seeks
reasonable assurance relating to the quality
and performance of commissioned services.
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Attendance
(eligible to
attend)

1 (5)
Deputy
sent to 4
meetings

Helen Lewis - Director of Pathway
Integration

5 (5)

Sabrina Armstrong Director of Organisational Effectiveness

4 (5)

Dr Jason Broch - Assistant Clinical Chair

1 (1)

Primary Care Commissioning Committee
The Committee has been established in
accordance with statutory provisions to enable
the CCG to make collective decisions on the
review, planning and procurement of primary
care services within the CCG area, under
delegated authority from NHSEI.

Member Name

Attendance
(eligible to
attend)

Voting Members

The membership consists of all Governing Body
members apart from those who provide primary
medical services in Leeds (to avoid conflicts of
interest). The meetings are also attended by a
representative of the local Health and Wellbeing
Board, Healthwatch and NHSE. A Member
Representative is also in attendance at meetings,
but not a formal member of the Committee.
The Primary Care Commissioning Committee met
six times during 2020-21:

Samantha Senior - Lay Member;
Primary Care Co-Commissioning (Chair)

6 (6)

Cheryl Hobson - Lay member; Audit &
Conflicts of Interest (from November
2020)

3 (3)

Angela Collins - Lay member; PPI

6 (6)

Tim Ryley - Chief Officer

4 (6)

Visseh Pejhan-Sykes Executive Director of Finance

5 (6)
Deputy sent
to 1 meeting

Jo Harding Executive Director of Quality & Nursing

5 (6)
Deputy sent
to 1 meeting

Dr Simon Stockill Medical Director

6 (6)

Helen Lewis Director of Pathway Integration

5 (6)

Dr Phil Ayres Secondary Care Specialist Doctor

2 (5)

Non-Voting Members

39

Katherine Sheerin - Director of System
Integration (until July 2020)

1 (1)

Sabrina Armstrong
Director of Organisational Effectiveness

6 (6)

Julianne Lyons
GP Member Representative

6 (6)

Consultant in Public Health

6 (6)

Healthwatch Representative

5 (6)

NHSEI Representative

3 (6)

Health & Wellbeing Board Representative

1 (6)

Performance and assessment of effectiveness
Each committee has completed a self-assessment
of its performance and effectiveness throughout
the year. The reviews demonstrate that the
committees are operating effectively and are
fulfilling their terms of reference however
there are some areas for improvement such as
considering strategic conversation at all meetings,
reflecting on the outcomes and decisions made
at the end of each meeting, further consideration
to the membership in light of the CCG Shaping
our Future programme and the suggestion of the
establishment of a Finance Committee. These
actions will be taken forward with the chair and
executive leads for each committee.

requirements associated with each of the
statutory functions for which it is responsible,
including any restrictions on delegation of those
functions.
Responsibility for each duty and power has been
clearly allocated to a lead Director. Directorates
have confirmed that their structures provide the
necessary capability and capacity to undertake all
of the CCG’s statutory duties.
Risk management arrangements and
effectiveness
The CCG has an agreed risk management strategy,
which is published on the CCG’s website and staff
extranet. The risk management strategy has been
reviewed to ensure it reflects best practice in risk
management. The strategy was approved by the
Governing Body in May 2019.

UK Corporate Governance Code
NHS Bodies are not required to comply with the
UK Code of Corporate Governance.

Implementation of the strategy provides assurance
to the Audit Committee and the Governing Body
that operational and strategic risks are being
managed and where necessary escalated to the
Governing Body. The strategy aims to support:

However, we have reported on our corporate
governance arrangements by drawing upon best
practice available, including those aspects of the
UK Corporate Governance Code we consider to
be relevant to the CCG and best practice. The
CCG is required to comply with the NHS Act
2006 (as amended) and statutory guidance from
NHS England. The Constitution and Governance
Handbook describe the CCG’s governance
arrangements, both of which are published on
the CCG website.

• Identification and prioritisation of the risks to
the achievement of the commitments of the
CCG;
• Evaluation of the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically; and

Discharge of statutory functions
During establishment, the arrangements put
in place by the CCG and explained within
the Corporate Governance Framework were
developed with extensive expert external legal
input, to ensure compliance with the all relevant
legislation. That legal advice also informed
the matters reserved to the Membership and
Governing Body, and the scheme of delegation.

• Management and reporting of risks.
The strategy sets out the CCG’s definition of risk,
the roles and responsibilities in relation to risk
management across the organisation and the
principles of risk management. Risk management
and monitoring responsibilities are also included in
committee terms of reference.
Risks are identified from a broad range of sources
including incidents, complaints, internal audit
reports and reports by external bodies, identified
risks are recorded on the CCG risk register. Risks
that may affect the ability of the CCG to meet
its strategic commitments are recorded on the
Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF).

In light of the Harris Review, the CCG has
reviewed all of the statutory duties and powers
conferred on it by the National Health Service
Act 2006 (as amended) and other associated
legislative and regulations. As a result, I can
confirm that the CCG is clear about the legislative
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The CCG risk appetite statement has been agreed
by the Governing Body. Implementation of
the risk appetite includes determining the risk
appetite for each of the operational and strategic
risks and setting a target risk level for each risk to
be managed to. Actions to reduce the risk score
are monitored as part of the risk management
process.

All operational risks are recorded on the
risk register. Risks are evaluated using a risk
assessment matrix which analyses the risk
in terms of consequence and likelihood and
evaluates it using a 5x5 matrix. The strategy sets
levels of risk score that determine which risks
can be accepted, those that are managed at
operational level on the risk register and those
that are overseen by committees or escalated to
the Governing Body. The operational risks are
managed within directorates with support from
the Corporate Governance and Risk Team. When
risks increase in score, red 15 or above, these
are escalated to the corporate risk register. The
risks are reviewed and updated on a regular cycle
with risk owners and the corporate risk register
is presented and reviewed by the Governing
Body at each meeting. High amber and red risks
are also reported bi-monthly to the Executive
Management Team and the relevant committee
at each meeting.

In addition to the operation of the risk
management strategy, risk management is
embedded in the CCG in a number of ways, for
example:
• The CCG operates a city wide incident
reporting system which facilitates the review of
incidents to identify any as a potential risk to
the CCG;
• The risk manager provides guidance, support
and training to staff appropriate to their
authority and duties;
• The Governing Body and CCG employees
receive training in Equality and Diversity and
Equality Impact Assessments are completed
for all strategy, policies and business cases so
that the full impact on protected groups is
identified and taken into account;

The CCG is compliant with the Secretary of State’s
Directions for counter fraud and the requirement
for the provision of a local counter fraud specialist
(LCFS). The activities undertaken by the LCFS
during the year have been delivered to ensure
that they are risk-based and in line with the latest
thought-leadership and emerging methodologies.

• Quality and equality impact assessments are
also completed to assess the possible impact
of commissioning decisions, QIPP plans and
business cases and any mitigating actions are
outlined in the assessment; and

The Governing Body Assurance Framework
(GBAF) sets out how the CCG manages
the principal risks to delivering its strategic
commitments. The Governing Body owns
and determines the content of the GBAF,
identifying the strategic risks to achieving the
CCG’s commitments and monitoring progress
throughout the year. Each risk is regularly
reviewed to ensure the controls and assurances
remain valid and any identified gaps are mitigated
by timely implementation of clearly defined
actions.

• The CCG has policies in place to encourage
employees to highlight risks and report
concerns, for example through the
Whistleblowing Policy.
The public are not directly involved in managing
risk, but they are involved in commissioning
decisions that affect them and therefore their
views regarding the design of services are
captured during engagement and consultation.
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Capacity to handle risk
Risks identified by the CCG are recorded on risk
registers and are allocated to senior officers and
Governing Body members to take responsibility
for the agreed mitigating actions. The risks are
reviewed at each committee and Governing Body
meeting via a standing agenda item. The steering
groups, project groups and the committees
provide progress and exception reports to the
Governing Body which includes risks to delivery
of projects and strategic commitments. The
Governing Body is well sighted on risks.

As at 31 March 2021 the key risks faced by the
CCG were:
• Risk of harm to patients due to:
- Patients not presenting with symptoms due
to COVID-19 fears/concerns, including some
urgent presentations/referrals
- Routine referral routes into hospital settings
being stopped from approximately 26 March
through to June 2020
- The backlog generated in terms of patients
waiting for a diagnostic, first outpatient
appointment, follow-up or surgery, resulting
in potentially increased morbidity, mortality
and widening of health inequalities

The CCG has a dedicated risk manager who
continues to increase the profile and awareness
of risk management in the CCG during 2020-21.
The risk manager provides guidance, support and
training to staff appropriate to their authority
and duties. The risk management strategy is
available on the CCG website and staff extranet.
An Internal Audit of the governance and risk
management arrangements has provided high
assurance that the system of risk management
embedded at the CCG (CCG) was in line with the
Risk Management Strategy.

• The strategic risk of widening or not reducing
the health inequality gap has increased due to
the impact of COVID-19
• Information security maturity, including, risk
to cyber security impacting on availability of
systems and data
• Capability to manage demand and discharge
volumes during times of high demand.

The Audit Committee has responsibility
for ensuring the CCG has an effective risk
management system, a deep dive of the
assurances provided for the strategic risks is
included on the agenda at the Audit Committee
during 2020-21. The Executive Management
Team and the individual committees receive the
high amber and red rated risks relevant to their
remit.

During the financial year the following key risks
were identified and managed to an acceptable
level by the 31 March 2021:

Risk assessment
Risk is assessed in accordance with the risk
management strategy. Risk assessment is
undertaken using a risk assessment matrix
included in the strategy. This ensures a consistent
approach to risk assessment; the matrix reflects
the organisation’s agreed risk levels and those
at which escalation to senior managers and
directors is required.

• Following the exit from the EU a risk relating
to the uncertain impact of the exit agreement
was added to the CCG risk register. This
risk has since been reduced due the CCG
experiencing minimal impact.

• The impact of the financial framework
introduced in response to COVID-19 on the
CCG financial position was highlighted as a
risk to achievement of the statutory financial
duties. This risk was reduced, as the year-end
financial position became clear.

All identified risks have details of key controls,
how assurance will be given, gaps in controls
and assurance, target risk level, action plans to
address gaps and the risk owner.
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Other sources of assurance
Internal Control Framework
A system of internal control is the set of
processes and procedures in place in the clinical
commissioning group to ensure it delivers its
policies, aims and objectives. It is designed to
identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised, and to manage
them efficiently, effectively and economically.

current identified risks with any other significant
developments that may arise on these agendas to
ensure any identified problems are appropriately
recorded on the risk register.
Annual audit of conflicts of interest
management
The revised statutory guidance on managing
conflicts of interest for CCGs (published
June 2016) requires CCGs to undertake an
annual internal audit of conflicts of interest
management. To support CCGs to undertake this
task, NHS England has published a template audit
framework.

The system of internal control allows risk to
be managed to a reasonable level rather than
eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness.

During the year, an annual audit of conflicts of
interest has been undertaken. The overall rating
for the audit was ‘high assurance’ which reflects
the robust arrangements in place at the CCG.
Minor recommendations were made to further
strengthen the arrangements, which have now
been implemented.

We have assigned both internal and external
auditors to provide the Governing Body with
independent assurance of its process of internal
control and to assure itself of the validity of this
Governance Statement.

Data quality
The CCG has an in-house business intelligence
(BI) service and BI is overseen as part of the BI,
IG and IT Committee. All of the Governing Body
committees were reviewed in quarter four of
2019-20 and no concerns were raised regarding
data quality.

Throughout the year a series of audits continue
to be undertaken to review the effectiveness
of governance systems. The finalised reports
and agreed action plans from these audits are
submitted to the Audit Committee. All audit
reports contain action plans of work required
as a result of the review findings. All actions are
assigned to a senior manager with responsibility
to complete within the designated timescales.
Managers are held to account by the Audit
Committee for completion of all actions. Four
internal audit reports for the CCG have been
given a rating of significant assurance, and 10
reports have been rated as high assurance.
Two internal audit reports were given a rating
of limited assurance. However, follow up
audits have been completed to consider the
recommendations and high assurance ratings
given in the final Head of Audit Opinion.

Information governance
In 2018 the Data Security and Protection Toolkit
(DSPT) replaced the Information Governance
Toolkit. The DSPT is used to assess organisations
against the National Data Guardian’s data security
standards. Assessment of organisational practice
using the DSPT is carried out annually. Due to
COVID-19, the annual submission for the DSPT
was delayed until 30 September 2020. The CCG
completed the 2019-20 DSPT with ‘Standards
Met’. The DSPT for 2020-21 was released on
1 December 2020 with a submission date of
30 June 2021.

The Governing Body Assurance Framework
and Corporate Risk Register are standing
agenda items on the Governing Body and
Audit Committee agendas. This allows the
CCG Governing Body members to cross-check
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The CCG places high importance on ensuring
there are robust information governance systems
and processes in place to help protect patient
and corporate information. The CCG has an
established Information Governance / Business
Intelligence and IT Committee which reports into
the Audit Committee. The Committee provides
assurance that the CCG is compliant with relevant
law, mandatory regulations/legislation and
guidance.

All practices are mandated to join a primary care
network (PCN); to assist with this the CCG has
developed a data sharing agreement for practices
which outlines their responsibilities as joint data
controllers.

The CCG has an information governance
management framework and continue to
develop information governance processes and
procedures in line with the Data Security and
Protection Toolkit and legislation. The CCG has
appointed experienced members of staff to key
roles including a Senior Information Risk Owner
(SIRO), Caldicott Guardian, Data Protection
Officer, Cyber Assurance and Compliance
Manager, Information Governance Managers
and Freedom of Information Lead. All staff
are required to undertake annual mandatory
Data Security Awareness training and policies
and procedures are in place to ensure staff are
aware of their information governance roles and
responsibilities.

• Data sharing

Any information or security breaches are
managed within the CCG Risk Management
strategy and reported using the CCG’s Risk
Management system (Datix). The IG team work
closely with other teams within the CCG to
investigate and report data breaches.

As a CCG we work extremely closely with our
local government colleagues to provide joined
up IG solutions for city wide services for both
patient/citizen care and shared infrastructure
projects.

Support for COVID-19 response
The CCG has completed numerous DPIAs for
COVID-19 related projects to cover extraordinary
demands placed upon primary care. These cover:
• Staffing
• Infrastructure
• Software applications for practices
The CCG has assisted in creating solutions that
allow practices to share data under the COPI
notice.
Support for partners
The CCG is working with the West Yorkshire
NHS Research and Development team and Leeds
GP Confederation to create a robust research
framework to allow the ethical use of patient
data for research projects for ‘common good’
benefits.

The CCG IG team is an active member of the
Leeds Information Governance Steering Group,
which represents most of the public sectors in the
city and are instrumental in deciding, guiding and
implementing city wide IG strategy.

Support for GPs
The CCG provides a Data Protection Officer
service to the majority of Leeds GP practices and
an IG advice service for all Leeds GP practices,
providing advice in compliance obligations, Data
Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA), training,
audit, best practice, confidentiality issues, data
breaches etc.

The CCG is one of the joint Data Controllers for
the Leeds Care Record (shared care data projects);
the IG team continues to guide its evolution, as
well as reviewing all applications for access.

The CCG provides a comprehensive resource
pack to aid the completion of the GP DSPT and
provide a number of sessions with practices to
troubleshoot areas where they have found issues.
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Control Issues
The CCG identified a deficit forecast within the
Month 9 Governance Statement return, however
work with City partners has rectified this and the
CCG will be at a break even position at the year
end, therefore there is nothing further to report
in this Governance Statement.

Support for CCG colleagues
The CCG IG team provide support across the CCG
in regard to the compliance issues of collecting,
processing and disclosing data for the purpose
of CCG business, Population Health management
and research application. In addition IG has
been embedded into the commissioning process
of the CCG with the IG team being consulted
throughout the development of new services and
projects.

Review of economy, efficiency & effectiveness
of the use of resources
The Governing Body has overarching
responsibility for ensuring that the CCG has
appropriate arrangements in place to exercise its
functions effectively, efficiently and economically.

Requests for information
The CCG is committed to being open and
transparent. This includes meeting the statutory
requirements of the Freedom of Information Act
2000 (FOIA). The FOIA requires every public body
to produce and regularly maintain a publication
scheme. Our publication scheme can be found
here: www.leedsccg.nhs.uk/foi/publicationscheme.

The ratings for the quality of leadership indicator
of the CCG Oversight Framework are published
on the NHS England website (www.england.
nhs.uk/commissioning/regulation/ccg-assess/
iaf/). The overall 2019/20 rating for the CCG is
‘outstanding’. There are currently no in year
updates available for 2020-21.

The CCG has a working group which is
responsible for the maintenance of the
Publication Scheme which comprises of staff from
Information Governance, Corporate Governance,
Finance and Communications.

The CCG has developed and continues to refine
systems and processes to effectively manage
financial risks and to secure a stable financial
position.

In 2020-21 (April 2020-Feb 2021) the CCG
received 148 FOI requests compared to 210
requests in 2019-2020; of these 9 requests relate
to COVID-19. We have responded to 141 of these
requests within the mandatory 20 working days.

The planning and budget setting process in this
financial year has been in stages, reflecting the
context of changing circumstances due to the
COVID-19 pandemic.
• The CCG’s financial plan was developed for
2020-21, submitted to NHSEI and presented to
Governing Body in March 2021. However the
planning process was then paused due to the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Subject Access Requests (SAR)
During the period April 2020 to date the CCG has
received six requests for information, and all have
been responded to within the current timelines.
Third party assurances
We seek assurance from third party providers
about some of the services we receive. The most
recent controls assurance report relating to the
payroll service provided by the trust provided
assurance that the service is properly controlled,
managed and resourced.

• In response to the pandemic the financial
regime changed and resulted in NHSEI
modelling high level budgets for each
commissioner and mandating block payments
to providers for April to July 2021. Allocations
were only provided initially for these 4
months in May 2021, and the CCG uploaded
its COVID-19 budgets for this period into the
ledger as per the national model.
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• The financial regime for months 1-4 was then
extended to months 5-6, and a further two
months of budget allocations were issued
based on the same NHSEI modelling used for
months 1-4. The CCG uploaded its budgets in
August 2020

and implementation of recommendations are
discussed in detail at meetings of the Audit
Committee.
The CCG’s annual accounts are reviewed by the
Audit Committee prior to formal approval by the
Governing Body.

• The CCG received monthly retrospective topups and COVID-19 budget allocations, which
were then uploaded to the ledger and added
to existing budgets.

The CCG is actively engaged in discussions to
ensure resources are prioritised in line with
its strategic direction, including opportunities
for developing new models of care across the
spectrum of healthcare providers.

• A half year planning process was then enacted,
via the ICS, for the period October 2020 to
March 2021. In October 2020, the CCG’s
financial plan for months 7-12 was agreed as a
deficit position of £14.8m by NHSEI as part of
feedback to ICS. Associated budgets were then
uploaded to the ledger.

Delegation of functions
Functions have been delegated to the West
Yorkshire and Harrogate Joint Committee of CCGs
to support the integrated care system and ensure
joined up and efficient decision making. The
Committee has delegated authority from the WY
CCGs to take joint decisions on agreed priorities.
The Committee also makes recommendations
when a collaborative approach across WY&H will
help to achieve better outcomes. The Committee
has an independent lay chair, three CCG lay
members and two representatives from each
WY CCG. North Yorkshire CCG is an associate
member. As a result of COVID-19, all meetings
were held virtually in 2020-21 and were live
streamed.

• The financial plan for months 7-12 and the
COVID-19 model for months 1-6 were then
translated into full year detailed budgets,
details of which were sent to Directors in
January 2021
• The Governing Body has received regular
papers on the various changes to the finance
regime throughout the year, the CCG’s
continued internal planning, and the ongoing
discussions at both place and ICS level. Which
together with the standard monthly financial
reporting has kept them informed of the
current financial position and the wider picture
and all the inherent uncertainties.

The Committee has a Public and Patient
Involvement Assurance Group made up of lay
members from each CCG. The Group provides
assurance that public and patient voice informs
the Committee’s decisions.

Finance reports are presented to the Executive
Management Team and at each Governing Body
and Primary Care Commissioning Committee
meeting, with a copy being presented to each
meeting of the Audit Committee. Alongside the
financial position, risks and actions to mitigate
risks are reported and discussed. The CCG is also
required to provide monthly financial information
to NHSEI.

Responding to COVID-19
The Committee considered how WY&H health
and care programmes had refocused to support
the response to COVID-19. The Committee
agreed that its work during the year would need
to evolve to reflect the new priorities arising from
COVID-19.

The CCG makes full use of internal and audit
functions to ensure controls are operating
effectively and to advise on areas for
improvement. Audit reports, action plans

West Yorkshire and Harrogate Healthy Hearts
In 2018, the Joint Committee recommended the
CCGs to adopt the Healthy Hearts improvement
project, building on successful work in Bradford.
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Improving planned care
The Committee supported changes to the
Improving Planned Care programme, which
focused on restarting planned care following the
first wave of COVID-19. This included improving
access to diagnostic testing services and more
shared decision making between primary and
secondary care. The Committee approved an
amendment to a WY&H policy for flash glucose
monitors - small sensors worn on the skin
for monitoring the glucose levels of people
with diabetes. The amendment covered type
2 diabetes patients with learning disabilities
who need to use insulin. Self-management of
diabetes by patients with learning disabilities
would promote independence and reduce health
inequalities.

The project aims to identify more people with
high blood pressure, help them to control it
better and reduce the risk of heart attacks and
strokes. As a result, 22,000 more people have
had their blood pressure controlled to target
numbers. WY&H Healthy Hearts won the Health
Service Journal Cardiovascular Initiative of the
Year award in 2020.
Assessment and Treatment Units (ATUs) for
people with complex learning disabilities
The Committee supported a proposal to
commission a new care model for people with
a learning disability. This involved collaborative
commissioning between commissioners and
providers across the whole pathway for people
with learning disabilities. The aim is to develop
a single system and centre of excellence. The
Committee noted plans for engaging with people
who had accessed care in ATUs, their carers and
staff. Formal approval for the proposals was
sought at a meeting in 2021/22, following further
engagement.

The Joint Committee had previously agreed a
number of clinical threshold policies, which had
improved equality of access across WY&H and
reduced levels of surgery where non-surgical
interventions could be more effective.
Stroke
In 2018, the Joint Committee agreed a common
approach for commissioning hyper acute
stroke services and all stages from prevention
to recovery. The specialist hyper-acute stroke
pathways are now well established, with 4
units providing hyper-acute care during the
first 72 hours following stroke across WY&H.
A sustainable stroke clinical network has been
established, working to provide the best stroke
services possible and further improve quality
and stroke outcomes in each of our six places.
Priorities include preventing strokes, delivering
effective care when people have a stroke
and ensuring that there is good support and
rehabilitation for people after a stroke.

Urgent and emergency care
The Committee supported a national programme
which built on learning from COVID-19. It
encouraged people to phone 111 as an alternative
to ‘walking’ unheralded into Emergency
Departments (EDs). The integrated offer
included alternative pathways, for example GPs,
pharmacists and mental health advice. Patients
are remotely triaged to determine if there is a
clinical need to be seen face to face.
The Committee considered a report on primary
medical care services in West Yorkshire, which
were provided by Local Care Direct (LCD). The
response to COVID-19, changes in national policy
and potential changes to the commissioner
landscape meant that there was uncertainty
about what should be commissioned for the
future. The Committee felt that in the current
circumstances a pragmatic approach should be
taken and agreed to extend the service from LCD
for three years.

Working better together
The Committee led new approaches to
collaborative working between commissioners
and providers. The Commissioning Futures
programme was developed in collaboration with
partners across the health and care system, based
on our successful model of place-based working.
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Work is only carried out at WY&H level if it adds
value to our places. The Committee supported
collaboration between commissioners and
providers through the Cancer Alliance, Improving
Planned Care programme, Local Maternity
System and Mental Health, Learning Disability
and Autism Alliance. The Committee also
supported the Yorkshire and Humber framework
for integrated commissioning of Integrated
Urgent and Emergency Care Services provided by
Yorkshire Ambulance Service.

Audit issued an independent and objective
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the clinical commissioning group’s system of risk
management, governance and internal control.
The Head of Internal Audit concluded that:

Governance
In 2020, the WY CCGs agreed a revised
Memorandum of Understanding for Collaborative
Commissioning, which included a new work
plan and the delegation of new commissioning
decisions to the Joint Committee.

During the year, Internal Audit issued the
following audit reports:

• Significant assurance can be given that
there is a good system of governance, risk
management and internal control designed
to meet the organisation’s objectives and
that controls are generally being applied
consistently.

Area of audit

Level of
assurance given

Confederation Governance Follow up High

The Committee maintains a register of members’
interests and declarations of interest are a
standing item on all agendas. At each meeting,
the Committee reviews the significant risks to the
delivery of its work programme and assesses how
these risks are being mitigated.

Counter fraud arrangements
The CCG has contracted with Audit Yorkshire
who provide an accredited counter fraud
specialist (LCFS) to undertake counter fraud work.
The LCFS meets regularly with the Chief Finance
Officer, who is responsible for overseeing and
providing strategic management and support for
all anti-fraud, bribery and corruption work within
the organisation. The LCFS also attends Audit
Committee meetings and provides a progress
report on the work undertaken. This includes a
report on the outcome of the self-assessment
against the NHS Counter Fraud Authority
Standards for Commissioners. The last assessment
was presented to the Audit Committee in July
2020 with an overall score of ‘green’.

Head of Internal Audit Opinion
Following completion of the planned audit
work for the financial year for the clinical
commissioning group, the Head of Internal
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Implementation of IT Systems
Penetration Testing

Limited

Implementation of IT Systems
Penetration Testing follow up of the
limited opinion

High

Returning Stronger - the CCG’s
response to COVID-19

Significant

Primary Care Commissioning

Full

Medicine Optimisation

Limited

Medicine Optimisation follow up of
the limited opinion

High

Risk Management and Governance
Arrangements

High

Management of Conflicts of Interest

High

Partnerships

Significant

Patient Experience

High

Quality Improvement

High

Special Education Needs & Disability
(SEND)

Significant

Budgetary Control and Key Financial
Controls

High

Children’s Continuing Care

In draft

Data Security & Protection Toolkit

Fieldwork is
ongoing, to date,
no major areas
of concern have
been identified

Development of a Commissioning
Strategy

Significant

Review of the effectiveness of
governance, risk management and
internal control

The GBAF and Corporate Risk Register are
regular agenda items on the Governing Body
and Audit Committee agendas. This allows the
CCG Governing Body members to triangulate
current identified risks with any other significant
developments that may arise on these agendas to
ensure any identified problems are appropriately
recorded on the risk register.

My review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control is informed by the work of the
internal auditors, executive managers and clinical
leads within the clinical commissioning group
who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework. I
have drawn on performance information available
to me. My review is also informed by comments
made by the external auditors in their annual
audit letter and other reports.

The CCG also seeks assurance from other areas
about some of the services it receives. Annual
assurance statements are received from the
CCG’s payroll provider in respect of their internal
controls.

Conclusion

The CCG Governing Body Assurance Framework
(GBAF) provides me with evidence that the
effectiveness of controls that manage risks to
the clinical commissioning group achieving its
principles objectives have been reviewed.

No significant internal control issues have been
identified.

I have been advised on the implications of the
result of my review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control by the Governing
Body, Primary Care Commissioning Committee,
Audit Committee and the Quality & Performance
Committee, and a plan to address weaknesses
and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

Tim Ryley
Chief Executive (Accountable Officer)
10 June 2021

We have assigned both internal and external
auditors to provide the Governing Body with
independent assurance of its process of internal
control and to assure itself of the validity of this
Governance Statement.
Throughout the year a programme of audits has
been undertaken to review the effectiveness
of governance systems. The reports from these
audits are submitted to the Audit Committee.
All audit reports contain action plans of work
required as a result of the review findings. All
actions are assigned to a senior manager with
responsibility to complete within the designated
timescales. Managers are held to account by the
Audit Committee for completion of all actions.
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2.2 Remuneration and staff report
2.2.1 Remuneration report
Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Details of our Remuneration and Nomination
Committee’s membership, number of meetings
during the year and individual attendance records
are provided in our Governance Statement in
section 2.1.3.
Policy on remuneration of senior managers
To determine the level of remuneration, both
present and future, the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee takes into consideration
national guidance issued by NHSEI and
benchmarking data from other CCGs.
In 2019-20 benchmarking data was collated to
inform pay levels. Our senior managers’ pay has
not been subject to any performance related pay
considerations.
All senior managers have been awarded standard
contracts based on a model developed across
West Yorkshire with standard terms, durations,
notice periods and termination payments.
Standard notice periods are currently three
months.
Remuneration of very senior managers
Two senior managers are paid more than
£150,000 per annum pro rata. The CCG
has satisfied itself that this remuneration is
reasonable via the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, which has assured itself that the
remuneration is in line with national guidance
set out in CCG Governing Body Members: Role
Outlines, Attributes and Skills. This states that “All
payments should be:
• evidently in line with the individual‘s current
earnings
• commensurate with the average rate for their
current employment or the specific role or
• demonstrably required to provide backfill.”
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Title

5
5

5

3
4

Notes

30 - 35
95 - 100
5 - 10
25 - 30
105 - 110
25 - 30
30 - 35
30 - 35
10 - 15
0-5
5 - 10
10 - 15
15 - 20

90 - 95

95 - 100

135 - 140
120 - 125
55 - 60

£’000

Salary
(bands of
£5,000)

100
100

-

-

-

£’00

-

-

-

-

£’000

-

-

-

-

£’000

Expense
Long Term
Payments Performance performance
(Rounded
Pay and
pay and
to the
Bonuses
Bonuses
nearest
(bands of
(bands of
£100)
£5,000)
£5,000)

2020-21

30.0 - 32.5
0 - 2.5
-

107.5 - 110

72.5 - 75.0
30 - 32.5
12.5 - 15.0
122.5 125.0

£’000

Note 6

All pension
related
benefits
(bands of
£2,500)

30 - 35
125 - 130
10 - 15
25 - 30
105 - 110
25 - 30
30 - 35
30 - 35
10 - 15
0-5
5 - 10
10 - 15
15 - 20

200 - 205

220 - 225

210 - 215
150 - 155
70 - 75

£’000

Total
(Bands of
£5,000)

Notes
1. Taxable expenses and benefits in kind are expressed to the nearest £100. The values and bands used to disclose sums in this table are prescribed by the Cabinet Office through Employer Pension Notices and
replicated in the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual
2. “All pension related benefits” is the annual increase in pension entitlement determined in accordance with the method set out in section 229 of the Finance Act 2004. The value of pension benefits accrued
during the year is calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20, less, the contributions made by the individual. The real increase excludes increases due to inflation or any increase or decrease due
to a transfer of pension rights. This value does not represent an amount that will be received by the individual. It is a calculation that is intended to convey to the reader of the accounts an estimation of the
benefit that being a member of the pension scheme could provide. The pension benefit table provides further information on the pension benefits accruing to the individual.
3. Victoria Eaton is Director of Public Health (DPH) at Leeds City Council. The DPH works for the CCG under a Memorandum of Understanding. No remuneration is payable by the CCG.
4. Leonardo Tantari is Chief Digital Information Officer for NHS Leeds CCG and Leeds City Council. The post is part of an agreement between NHS Leeds CCG and Leeds City Council and Leonardo receives no
remuneration from the CCG.
5. Salary includes employer’s pensions contributions made to GP Practitioner pension scheme paid by the CCG

Katherine Sheerin
Sabrina Armstrong
Jenny Cooke
Victoria Eaton
Leonardo Tantari
Gordon Sinclair
Jason Broch
Dr Ben Browning
Dr Julianne Lyons
Dr Keith Miller
Phil Ayres
Sue Brear
Cheryl Hobson
Angela Collins
Sam Senior

Director of Pathway Integration from 1 November 20, Interim
Director of Acute & Specialist Commissioning to 31 October 20
Interim Director of System Integration to 6 July 20
Director of Organisational Effectiveness
Director of Population Health Planning from 1 March 21
Director of Public Health
Chief Digital Information Officer from 23 Dec 20
Clinical Chair to 30 June 20
Clinical Chair from 1 July 20, Assistant Clinical Chair to 30 June 20
GP Member
GP Member
GP Member
Secondary Care Consultant
Lay Member - Audit to 31 May 20
Lay Member - Audit from 2 November 20
Lay Member - Patient & Public Involvement
Lay Member - Primary Care Commissioning Committee

Executive Director of Quality & Nursing

Jo Harding

Helen Lewis

Chief Executive
Executive Director of Finance
Medical Director

Tim Ryley
Visseh Pejhan-Sykes
Dr Simon Stockill

Governing Body Members

Name

Salaries and allowances (subject to audit)
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Title

Chief Executive to 30 Apr 19
Chief Executive from 1 May 19
Director of Strategy, Performance & Planning to 30 Apr 19
Executive Director of Finance
Medical Director
Executive Director of Quality & Nursing
Director of Acute & Specialist Commissioning to 31 Jan 20
Interim Director of Acute & Specialist Commissioning from 2 Jan 20
Interim Director of System Integration from 1 May 19
Director of Organisational Effectiveness from 1 Aug 19
Director of Corporate Services to 31 Jul 19
Director of Public Health to 29 Feb 20
Director of Public Health from 1 Mar 20
Clinical Chair
Assistant Clinical Chair
GP Member
GP Member
GP Member
Secondary Care Consultant
Lay Member - Audit to 31 May 19
Lay Member - Audit from 1 June 19
Lay Member - Patient & Public Involvement
Lay Member - Primary Care Commissioning Committee
7
7

7

6
6

5

4

3

Notes

100
200
200

-

95 - 100
100 - 105
70 - 75
25 - 30
30 - 35
30 - 35
10 - 15
0-5
15 - 20
10 - 15
15 - 20

100
100
100
-

1

-

£’00

115 - 120
65 - 70
80 - 85
80 - 85
20 - 25
75 - 80

115 - 120

10 - 15

£’000

-

-

-

-

-

£’000

-

-

-

-

-

£’000

-

42.5 - 45.0

22.5 - 25
15 - 17.5
20 - 22.5
20 - 25
-

55 - 57.5

-

£’000

Note 6

All pension
related
benefits
(bands of
£2,500)

100 - 105
70 - 75
25 - 30
30 - 35
30 - 35
10 - 15
0-5
15 - 20
10 - 15
15 - 20

140 - 145

140 - 145
80 - 85
105 - 110
80 - 85
40 - 45
75 - 80

170 - 175

10 - 15

£’000

Total
(Bands of
£5,000)

Notes
1. Taxable expenses and benefits in kind are expressed to the nearest £100. The values and bands used to disclose sums in this table are prescribed by the Cabinet Office through Employer Pension Notices and
replicated in the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual
2. “All pension related benefits” is the annual increase in pension entitlement determined in accordance with the method set out in section 229 of the Finance Act 2004
3. Philomena Corrigan ceased the role of Chief Executive on 30 April 19, but continued to be employed by the CCG working accross Leeds NHS Health System until 31 Aug 19, when she retired. Total
renumeration for all employment at the CCG was in the band £60k to £65k. NHS Pensions are unable to provide pensions related benefit data for retired members already in receipt of their pension
4. Sue Robins retired on 31 Jan 20. NHS Pensions are unable to provide pensions related benefit data for retired members already in receipt of their pension.
5. Katherine Sheerin’s role includes an element of her time working across the Leeds NHS Health System and this part of her costs were recharged to Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust. The amounts in the
table above only relate to the net costs for Leeds CCG. Total remuneration paid to Katherine was in the range £115k - £120k
6. Ian Cameron was Director of Public Health (DPH) at Leeds City Council until he retired on 29 Feb 2020. He was replaced by Victoria Eaton. The DPH works for the CCG under a Memorandum of Understanding.
No remuneration is payable by the CCG.
7. Salary includes employer’s pensions contributions made to GP Practitioner pension scheme paid by the CCG

Ian Cameron
Victoria Eaton
Gordon Sinclair
Jason Broch
Dr Ben Browning
Dr Julianne Lyons
Dr Keith Miller
Phil Ayres
Peter Myers
Sue Brear
Angela Collins
Sam Senior

Sabrina Armstrong

Visseh Pejhan-Sykes
Dr Simon Stockill
Jo Harding
Sue Robins
Helen Lewis
Katherine Sheerin

Tim Ryley

Philomena Corrigan

Governing Body Members

Name

Salary
(bands of
£5,000)

Expense
Long Term
Payments Performance performance
(Rounded
Pay and
pay and
to the
Bonuses
Bonuses
nearest
(bands of
(bands of
£100)
£5,000)
£5,000)

2019-20
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Title

0 - 2.5
5 - 7.5

5 - 7.5

0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5

Executive Director of Finance

Medical Director

Executive Director of Quality &
Nursing

Director of Pathway Integration from
1 November 20, Interim Director of
Acute & Specialist Commissioning to
31 October 20

Director of Organisational
Effectiveness

Director of Population Health
Planning from 1 March 21

Visseh Pejhan-Sykes

Simon Stockill

Jo Harding

Helen Lewis

Sabrina Armstrong

Jenny Cooke

-

0 - 2.5

10 - 12.5

12.5 - 15

-

-

5 - 7.5

£'000

10 - 15

30 - 35

35 - 40

45 - 50

25 - 30

40 - 45

30 - 35

£'000

Real increase Total accrued
in pension
pension at
lump sum at pension age
pension age at 31 March
(bands of 2019 (bands
£2,500)
of £5,000)

-

60 - 65

105 - 110

110 - 115

50 - 55

85 - 90

70 - 75

£'000

Lump sum
at pension
age related
to accrued
pension at 31
March 2019
(bands of
£5,000)

94

495

720

733

447

784

589

£'000

-

27

123

111

16

33

72

£'000

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value (CETV)
at 1st April Real increase
2018
in CETV

2020-21

Notes
Katherine Sheerin opted out of the NHS Pension Scheme on 31 March 2019.
As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there are no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.

0 - 2.5

Chief Executive

2.5 - 5

£'000

Tim Ryley

Governing Body Members

Name

Real increase
in pension at
pension age
(bands of
£2,500)

Pension benefits as of 31 March 2020 (subject to audit)

114

544

867

878

479

849

691

£'000

CETV at 31
March 2019

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

£'000

Employer's
contribution
to
stakeholder
pension
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Title

0 - 2.5
0 - 2.5
2.5 - 5

2.5 - 5

Executive Director of Quality &
Nursing

Interim Director of Acute & Specialist
Commissioning from 2 Jan 20

Director of Organisational
Effectiveness from 1 Aug 19
Director of Corporate Services
to 31 Jul 19

Jo Harding

Helen Lewis

Sabrina Armstrong

0 - 2.5

Medical Director

Executive Director of Finance

Visseh Pejhan-Sykes

5 - 7.5

£'000

Simon Stockill

Chief Executive from 1 May 19
Director of Strategy, Performance
& Planning to 30 Apr 19

Tim Ryley

Governing Body Members

Name

Real increase
in pension at
pension age
(bands of
£2,500)

2.5 - 5

12.5 - 15

0 - 2.5

-

-

12.5 -15

£'000

25 - 30

30 - 35

40 - 45

25 - 30

40 - 45

25 - 30

£'000

Real increase Total accrued
in pension
pension at
lump sum at pension age
pension age at 31 March
(bands of 2019 (bands
£2,500)
of £5,000)

55 - 60

90 - 95

95 - 100

50 - 55

85 - 90

65 - 70

£'000

Lump sum
at pension
age related
to accrued
pension at 31
March 2019
(bands of
£5,000)

433

583

676

413

723

433

£'000

38

28

23

15

27

128

£'000

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value (CETV)
at 1st April Real increase
2018
in CETV

2019-20

495

720

733

447

784

589

£'000

CETV at 31
March 2019

-

-

-

-

-

-

£'000

Employer's
contribution
to
stakeholder
pension

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values
A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is
the actuarially assessed capital value of the
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member
at a particular point in time. The benefits
valued are the member’s accrued benefits and
any contingent spouse’s (or other allowable
beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme.

Pay Multiples 2019/20 (subject to audit)
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the
relationship between the remuneration of the
highest-paid member of the Board in their
organisation and the median remuneration of the
organisation’s workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest paid
member of the Board in the financial year
2020-21 was £155k - £160k (£155k - £160k in
2019-20). This was 4.05 times the median
remuneration of the workforce (4.17 times in
2019 - 20), which was £38.9k (£37.8k in 2019 - 20).

CETVs are calculated in accordance with SI 2008
No.1050 Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer
Values) Regulations 2008
Real Increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded
by the employer. It does not include the
increase in accrued pension due to inflation or
contributions paid by the employee (including the
value of any benefits transferred from another
pension scheme or arrangement).

In 2020-21 no employees received remuneration
in excess of the highest paid member of the
Board. Remuneration ranged from £12k to £160k.

Lump sum data
NHS Pensions are using pension and lump sum
data from their systems without any adjustment
for a potential future legal remedy required as
a result of the McCloud judgement. (This is a
legal case concerning age discrimination over
the manner in which UK public service pension
schemes introduced a CARE benefit design in
2015 for all but the oldest members who retained
a Final Salary design.). We believe this approach
is appropriate given that there is still considerable
uncertainty on how the affected benefits within
the new NHS 2015 Scheme would be adjusted in
future once legal proceedings are completed.

Board Member - Highest paid
ratio

2020/21

2019/20

Midpoint of the banded
remuneration of the highest paid
Board Member (£000's)

157.5

157.5

Median total remuneration
(£000's)

38.9

37.8

Ratio

4.05

4.17

Total remuneration includes salary,
non-consolidated performance-related pay,
benefits-in-kind, but not severance payments.
It does not include employer pension
contributions and the cash equivalent
transfer value of pensions. For part time staff,
remuneration is calculated by grossing up the
part time salary to full time equivalent.

Compensation on early retirement or for loss of
office (subject to audit)
The CCG did not make any payments for
compensation on early retirement or loss of office
in the financial year

The remuneration of the highest paid board
member has been grossed up to full time
equivalent.

Payments to past directors (subject to audit)
The CCG did not make any payments for
compensation on early retirement or loss of office
in the financial year.

55

56

-

-

-

-

-

1

£25,001 - £50,000

£50,001 - £100,000

£100,001 - £150,000

£150,001 -£200,000

>£200,000

Totals

7,479

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Number

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

£

Cost of other
departures
agreed

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

Number

Total number
of exit
packages

7,479

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,479

£

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Number

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

£

Number of Cost of special
departures
payment
where special
element
Total cost of payments have
included in
exit packages
been made exit packages

These tables report the number and value of exit packages agreed in the financial year. Severance costs have been paid in
accordance with the provisions of Section 16 of the Agenda for Change Terms and Conditions of Employment Handbook and/or
associated employer obligations. Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the latest
in full, in the year of departure.

-

£10,000 - £25,000

7,479

£

Number

1

Cost of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Less than £10,000

Exit package cost
band (inc. any special
payment element

Number
of other
departures
agreed

Exit packages, including special (non-contractual) payments (subject to audit)

57

Net employee benefits
expenditure excluding
capitalised costs

Less: Employee costs
capitalised

Net employee benefits
expenditure including
capitalised costs

Less: Recoveries in
respect of employee
benefits (note 4.1.2)

Gross Employee Benefits
Expenditure

10,289

-

10,289

-

10,289

-

-

Other employment
benefits

Termination benefits

-

57

Apprenticeship Levy

Other post-employment
benefits

3

Other pension costs

1,716

824

Social security costs

Employer contributions
to the NHS Pension
Scheme

7,689

172

-

172

-

172

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

172

£'000

£'000

Salaries and wages

Other

Permanent
Employees

Admin

Employee benefits and staff numbers as

10,460

-

10,460

-

10,460

-

-

-

57

3

1,716

824

7,860

£'000

Total

7,257

-

7,257

(20)

7,277

7

-

-

-

6

710

596

5,957

£'000

Permanent
Employees

36

-

36

-

36

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

36

£'000

Other

Programme

31 March 2021

7,294

-

7,294

(20)

7,313

7

-

-

-

6

710

596

5,994

£'000

Total

17,546

-

17,546

(20)

17,566

7

-

-

57

9

2,425

1,421

13,646

£'000

Permanent
Employees

208

-

208

-

208

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

208

£'000

Other

Total

17,754

-

17,754

(20)

17,774

7

-

-

57

9

2,425

1,421

13,854

£'000

Total
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Net employee benefits
expenditure excluding
capitalised costs

Less: Employee costs
capitalised

Net employee benefits
expenditure including
capitalised costs

Less: Recoveries in
respect of employee
benefits (note 4.1.2)

9,974

-

9,974

-

9,974

209

-

209

-

209

-

110

Gross Employee Benefits
Expenditure

Termination benefits

-

-

Other employment
benefits

-

-

-

55

Apprenticeship Levy

-

-

-

209

Other post-employment
benefits

3

Other pension costs

1,662

806

Social security costs

Employer contributions
to the NHS Pension
Scheme

7,338

£'000

£'000

Salaries and wages

Other

Permanent
Employees

Admin

10,183

-

10,183

-

10,183

110

-

-

55

3

1,662

806

7,547

£'000

Total

6,734

-

6,734

(15)

6,749

-

-

-

-

4

655

552

5,538

£'000

Permanent
Employees

213

-

213

-

213

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

213

£'000

Other

Programme

31 March 2020

6,947

-

6,947

(15)

6,962

-

-

-

-

4

655

552

5,751

£'000

Total

16,708

-

16,708

(15)

16,723

110

-

-

55

7

2,317

1,358

12,876

£'000

Permanent
Employees

422

-

422

-

422

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

422

£'000

Other

Total

17,130

-

17,130

(15)

17,145

110

-

-

55

7

2,317

1,358

13,298

£'000

Total

Average number of people employed

Table 2: Off-payroll workers engaged at any point
during the financial year
For all off-payroll engagements between 1 April
2020 and 31 March 2021, for more than £245
(note1) per day

31 March 2021
Permanent
Employees

Other

Total

329

3

332

Total CCG
Of the above:
Number of whole time
equivalent people engaged
on capital projects

Number
-

-

Number of temporary off-payroll workers engaged
between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021

-

Of which:
31 March 2020

Total CCG
Of the above:
Number of whole time
equivalent people engaged
on capital projects

4

328

-

8

-

336

-

Off payroll engagements
Table 1: Length of all highly paid off-payroll
engagements
For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March
2021, for more than £245 (note1) per day:

4

The number that have existed for
less than 1 year at the time of reporting

3

The number that have existed for between
1 and 2 years at the time of reporting

1

The number that have existed for between
2 and 3 years at the time of reporting

-

The number that have existed for between
3 and 4 years at the time of reporting

-

The number that have existed for 4 or more
years at the time of reporting

-

-

Number subject to off-payroll legislation and
determined as in-scope of IR35 (see note 2)

1

Number subject to off-payroll legislation and
determined as out of scope of IR35 (see note 2)

3

Number of engagements reassessed for compliance
or assurance purposes during the year

-

Of which, number of engagements that saw a
change to IR35 status following review

-

Note 1: The £245 threshold is set to approximate the minimum
point of the pay scale for a Senior Civil Servant.
Note 2: A worker that provides their services through their
own limited company or another type of intermediary to
the client will be subject to off-payroll legislation and the
department must undertake an assessment to determine
whether that worker is in-scope of Intermediaries legislation
(IR35) or out-of-scope for tax purposes.

Number
Number of existing engagements
as of 31 March 2021

Number not subject to off-payroll legislation (see
note 2)

Table 3: Off-payroll board member/
senior official engagements
For any off-payroll engagements of board
members, and/or, senior officials with significant
financial responsibility, between 1 April 2020 and
31 March 2021
Number

Note 1: The £245 threshold is set to approximate the
minimum point of the pay scale for a Senior Civil Servant.

Number of off-payroll engagements of board
members, and/or senior officers with significant
financial responsibility, during the financial year.

-

Total no. of individuals on payroll and off-payroll
that have been deemed “board members, and/
or, senior officials with significant financial
responsibility”, during the financial year. This
figure should include both on payroll and offpayroll engagements.

20

Consultancy expenditure
During the year, the CCG incurred expenditure
totalling £574k (2019-20: £701k).
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2.2.2 Staff report
In October 2018, we published our People and
Organisational Development Strategy 2018 -2021
which provides a framework for developing our
organisation and the people who work here. To
accommodate the major change to operations
caused by the pandemic, the strategy was refreshed
in October 2020. Our approach is still based on the
six people ambitions mentioned in the last annual
report; however our strategy has been heavily
influenced by the following events of 2020:
• Agile Working - Harnessing the benefits of
remote working made necessary by the pandemic,
to enable us to be a more flexible and responsive
organisation by letting staff work in the location
that will allow them to do their work most
effectively
• Staff Portability - Working closely with citywide
partners to develop an agreement on terms
and conditions of redeploying staff in the event
of an emergency. This is to ensure that we are
able to respond quickly to future events like the
pandemic, whilst having existing reassurances
and agreements on how our staff will be treated
should they choose to be redeployed.
• Health & Wellbeing - Developing new ways
to promote the physical and mental health and
wellbeing of our staff. The impact of the pandemic
has made this especially important, and as we
continue to embrace new ways of working we
aim to ensure that our health and wellbeing offer
continues to be reliable, useful and innovative
• Diversity and Inclusion - The Black Lives Matter
movement brought greater focus on the inequities
faced by people of colour across the world. We
have refocused our attention to ensure that our
BAME staff network has a meaningful voice in our
organisation and is involved in the governance
arrangements to really be able to influence our
direction of travel. In addition we continue to
look at how we can increase inclusivity for other
marginalised groups by ensuring that our policies
and procedures really focus on doing what is
best for our staff as well as the organisation, for
example the development of our Disability Policy.
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• The NHS People Plan - The people plan set
out a very clear set of actions that we must
undertake to embody the behaviours set
out in the People Promise. We have actively
worked on completing and embedding the
actions from the NHS People plan into our
culture within the CCG.
• Leadership Development - Our new
focus on extreme teaming and matrix
working is underpinned by a distributive
leadership model. Alongside our senior
leadership behaviours matrix, we have
developed a leadership behaviours matrix
that encompasses all staff who are not senior
managers within the CCG. By enabling all
staff with the confidence to be leaderful we
aim to have more inclusive and agile decision
making that reflects our more inclusive and
agile organisation.
Staff consultation and engagement
The CCG took part in the NHS National
Staff Survey 2020 and will act on the
report outcomes as part of its wider staff
engagement. 75% of staff completed the
survey so it offers a robust and representative
view.
NHSEI released a national people pulse survey
that acted as a bi-weekly temperature check
with staff. This then moved to monthly. The
CCG took part in the people pulse, up until the
time of the NHS staff survey and aims to restart
the people pulse by the end of spring.
The Chief Executive carries out a monthly team
brief where all staff are invited to listen to an
update on the latest events that affect the CCG
and engage in a question and answer session
with him. In addition the chief executive leads
a monthly senior leadership tier meeting which
all senior leaders are invited to and are able to
present topics for discussion.
As the change to our operating model is now
being implemented we have continued to
embark on extensive consultation including
staff drop-ins, presentations, team meetings
and subject development sessions.

The NHS Leeds CCG Social Partnership Forum
continues to operate successfully and provides a
formal negotiation and consultation group for the
CCGs and trade unions to discuss and debate issues
in an environment of mutual trust and respect. In
particular it:
• Engages employers and trade union
representatives in meaningful discussion on the
development and implications of future policy
• Provides a forum for the exchange of comments
and feedback on issues that have a direct or
indirect effect on the workforce
• Promotes effective and meaningful
communication between all parties that can
be subsequently disseminated across the
membership
We continue to offer a cross-section of colleagues,
on behalf of their teams and including our staff
networks and groups, the opportunity to participate
in consultation on policy development via our
Workforce and Diversity Group.
The following policies have been reviewed and
agreed in 2020-2021:
• Recruitment and Selection Policy
• Freedom to Speak up Policy
• Organisation Change and Pay Protection Policy
• Disability Policy
• Travel and Subsistence Policy
• Grievance Policy
Staff recognition
Due to the nature of the events of 2020 staff
recognition has looked a little different to last
year. CCG staff have received letters of thanks and
commendation from the senior leadership from
across the city, for their response to COVID-19. The
West Yorkshire and Harrogate ICS is currently rolling
out a health and wellbeing thank you box that will
be available to all staff of CCGs across the ICS.
As lockdown rules lift later this year, the CCG is
aiming to do another staff wide event to recognise
the efforts of staff and celebrate all the hard
work that they have put into the past year, and
acknowledge the impeding changes coming in the
future.
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Training and appraisal
We achieved an overall compliance rate of
90% for statutory and mandatory training for
directly employed staff against a target of 90%.
This is a notable improvement since last year.
A number of staff have undertaken learning
and development opportunities linked to
their role via our learning and development
application process, which was revised as part
of the learning and development policy review
and is directly linked to the appraisal process.
In addition we have been able to provide a
broader learning and development experience
for staff by making workshops and training
from NHS Elect available to all staff. This will
continue in the 2021 - 22 year.
Due to the pressures of the pandemic, we
implemented a temporary light touch appraisal
process supported by simplified documentation.
This year we did not record compliance towards
this requirement however compliance will
once again be monitored for 2021-22. New
paperwork to support matrix working teams
and the concerns raised by the NHS People
plan has been developed and implemented for
2021 - 22 objective setting.
We are undertaking a skills gap analysis in
line with Shaping Our Future and appraisal
conversations, which will help us to better
determine the needs of our staff in their new
roles within the operating model. However,
we continue to offer coaching and mentoring
to staff, and accredited development
opportunities apprenticeship scheme and in
collaboration with the Leeds Health and Care
Academy.
Workplace health, safety and wellbeing
In response to the pandemic the CCG was
able to create a COVID-19 secure workplace;
however government restrictions mean that the
majority of staff needed to work from home.
Despite this, for safety and to combat the
mental health effects of isolation, staff were
able to book a COVID-19-secure space at WIRA
house if necessary.

In addition our established occupational health,
counselling and wellbeing offer was enhanced by an
online 24/7 Employee Assistance Programme, renewed
publicity for our Health & Wellbeing Group, our Mental
Health First Aiders and the Freedom to Speak Up
Guardians. We also established, initially, daily updates
to all staff including supportive messages from the
Chief Executive and EMT; ‘Kitchen Chat’ e-drop in
sessions

Equality impact assessments have been
carried out on all relevant policies. We value
diversity and aim to support protected
groups and recognise that in order to remove
the barriers experienced by disabled people
we need to make reasonable adjustments
for our disabled employees. We do this on a
case by case basis and involve occupational
health services as appropriate.

In line with the NHS People Plan, the CCG continues to
focus on looking at our flexible working offer, having
regular health and wellbeing conversations with staff,
and normalising conversations about diversity and
inclusion.

Reference to reasonable adjustments is
made in all relevant polices.
CCG staff members are required to complete
mandatory equality and diversity training.
Senior management team members, board
members, patient assurance group members
and staff directly involved in commissioning
work have attended a face to face training
session, which describes the implications of
the Public Sector Equality Duty for people
commissioning health services. All other
staff have completed an e-learning course.
In addition all staff have been requested to
undertake Unconscious Bias training.

Sickness absence data (optional to omit)
We are unable to obtain final data for our sickness
absence rates as DHSC has not commissioned the data
production exercise for 2020-21. Provisional data is
available at https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/
publications/statistical/nhs-sickness-absence-rates
Line managers are committed to providing support to
staff through the managing sickness policy to provide
excellent working conditions, balancing the health
needs of staff against the needs of the organisation.
Equality of opportunity
We are committed to eliminating unlawful
discrimination and promoting equality of opportunity
by building a workforce that is broadly representative of
the population we serve.
We make sure that equality and diversity is a priority
when planning and commissioning local healthcare and
in respect of our workforce.
To ensure that our staff members do not experience
discrimination, harassment and victimisation we
ensure equality is integrated across all our employment
practices and have a range of policies including:
• Acceptable standards of behaviour policy
(this includes dignity at work)
• Equal opportunities and diversity in
employment policy
• Managing sickness absence policy
• Recruitment and selection
• Disability policy
• Freedom to speak up policy
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Our BAME staff network has been
trained in recruitment and selection and a
representative from the network is requested
to be on every recruitment panel for roles at
band 7 and above.
In addition regular briefings and one to
one guidance and support are provided on
equality impact assessments and equality
analysis and in relation to the commissioning
of healthcare. We will ensure that all records
are updated to ensure compliance among
all staff, Governing Body members and the
Patient Assurance Group.

Annual workforce report
Number of senior managers by band

Trade union facility time, 2020-21
Table 1: Relevant union officials

Band 8a

57

Band 8b

29

Number of employees
who were relevant union
officials during the relevant
period

Band 8c

16

2

Band 8d

11

Band 9

1

Very senior managers

7

Governing body

16

Percentage of time

Number of employees

Any other spot salary

20

0%

-

1-50%

2

51%-99%

-

100%

-

Pay band

Total

Total

Permanent

317

Fixed term

57

Statutory office holders

0

Bank

0

Honorary

4

329

Table 2: Percentage of time spent on facility
time

Staff numbers and costs
Assignment category

Full-time equivalent
employee number

Table 3: Percentage of pay bill spent on facility
time
Total cost of facility time
Total pay bill

Gender breakdown

Percentage of the total pay
bill spent on facility time

£3,388
£17,501,147
0.019%

Gender

Total
(Female)

Total
(Male)

Band 8a

48

9

Band 8b

21

8

Band 8c

11

5

Band 8d

7

4

Band 9

1

0

Very senior managers

5

2

Governing body

10

6

Tim Ryley

Any other spot salary

13

7

Chief Executive (Accountable Officer)

All other employees (including
apprentice if applicable)

185

46

10 June 2021

Table 4: Paid trade union activities
As a percentage of total paid facility
time hours, how many hours were spent
by employees who were relevant union
officials during the relevant period on paid
trade union activities?

100%

2.3 Parliamentary accountability
and audit report
NHS Leeds CCG is not required to produce a
Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report.
There are no applicable disclosures with regard
to remote contingent liabilities, losses and special
payments, gifts, and fees and charges. An audit
certificate and report is also included in this
annual report.
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2.4. Independent auditor’s report to the members
of the governing body of NHS Leeds CCG
Report on the audit of the financial
statements

They have also concluded that there are no
material uncertainties that could have cast
significant doubt over its ability to continue as a
going concern for at least a year from the date of
approval of the financial statements (“the going
concern period”).

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of
NHS Leeds Clinical Commissioning Group (“the
CCG”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 which
comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure, Statement of Financial Position,
Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows, and the related notes,
including the accounting policies in note 1.

In our evaluation of the Accountable Officer’s
conclusions, we considered the inherent risks
to the CCG’s operating model and analysed
how those risks might affect the CCG’s financial
resources or ability to continue operations over
the going concern period.

In our opinion the financial statements:

Our conclusions based on this work:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the
CCG’s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of its
income and expenditure for the year then
ended; and

• we consider that the Accountable Officer’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate;

• have been properly prepared in accordance
with the accounting policies directed by NHS
England with the consent of the Secretary of
State as being relevant to CCGs in England
and included in the Department of Health and
Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2020/21.

• we have not identified, and concur with the
Accountable Officer’s assessment that there is
not, a material uncertainty related to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the CCG’s ability
to continue as a going concern for the going
concern period.

Basis for opinion

However, as we cannot predict all future events
or conditions and as subsequent events may
result in outcomes that are inconsistent with
judgements that were reasonable at the time
they were made, the absence of reference to a
material uncertainty in this auditor’s report is
not a guarantee that the CCG will continue in
operation.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs
(UK)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities are
described below. We have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities under, and are independent of the
CCG in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is a
sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Fraud and breaches of laws and
regulations - ability to detect

Going concern

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud
To identify risks of material misstatement due
to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events
or conditions that could indicate an incentive
or pressure to commit fraud or provide an
opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment
procedures included:

The Accountable Officer has prepared the
financial statements on the going concern basis
as they have not been informed by the relevant
national body of the intention to dissolve the CCG
without the transfer of its services to another
public sector entity.
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• Enquiring of management, the Audit
Committee and internal audit and inspection
of policy documentation as to the CCG’s
high-level policies and procedures to prevent
and detect fraud, including the internal audit
function, the counter fraud function and the
CCG’s channel for “whistleblowing”, as well as
whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud.

We performed procedures including:
• Identifying journal entries to test based on risk
criteria and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentation. These included
journals posted by the CFO or Deputy CFO;
journals posted to seldom used accounts;
journals resulting in a debit to debtors and a
credit to expenditure and journals posted to
cash accounts that were considered outside of
the normal course of business.

• Assessing the incentives for management to
manipulate reported expenditure as a result of
the need to achieve statutory targets delegated
to the CCG by NHS England.

• Assessing the completeness of disclosed
related party transactions and verifying they
had been accurately recorded within the
financial statements.

• Reading Governing Body and Audit Committee
minutes.

• Reviewing the completeness of information
provided by the CCG as part of the ‘NHS
Agreement of Balances’ exercise to ensure
consistency with the information in the
accounts.

• Using analytical procedures to identify any
usual or unexpected relationships.
• Reviewing the CCG’s accounting policies.
We communicated identified fraud risks
throughout the audit team and remained alert to
any indications of fraud throughout the audit.

• Assessing the completeness and accuracy of
recorded expenditure through specific testing
over purchases from Non-NHS bodies and
Non-NHS accruals.

As required by auditing standards, and taking
into account possible pressures to meet delegated
statutory resource limits, we performed
procedures to address the risk of management
override of controls, in particular the risk that
CCG management may be in a position to make
inappropriate accounting entries.

• Inspecting a sample of invoices received and
payments made before and after year end
to corroborate whether those items were
recorded in the correct accounting period.
Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws
and regulations
We identified areas of laws and regulations that
could reasonably be expected to have a material
effect on the financial statements from our
general sector experience and through discussion
with the directors and other management (as
required by auditing standards), and discussed
with the directors and other management the
policies and procedures regarding compliance
with laws and regulations.

On this audit we did not identify a fraud risk
related to revenue recognition because of the
nature of funding provided to the CCG, which is
transferred from NHS England and recognised
through the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’
Equity. However, in line with the guidance set out
in Practice Note 10 Audit of Financial Statements
of Public Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom
we recognised a fraud risk related to expenditure
recognition.
We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

As the CCG is regulated, our assessment of risks
involved gaining an understanding of the control
environment including the entity’s procedures for
complying with regulatory requirements.
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of internal controls. Our audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are
not responsible for preventing non-compliance
or fraud and cannot be expected to detect noncompliance with all laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations
throughout our team and remained alert to any
indications of non-compliance throughout the
audit.
The potential effect of these laws and regulations
on the financial statements varies considerably.

Other information in the Annual Report

The CCG is subject to laws and regulations that
directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation. Under the NHS
Act 2006, as amended by paragraph 223I1 (3)
of Section 27 of the Health and Social Care Act
2012, the CCG must ensure that its revenue
resource allocation in any financial year does not
exceed the amount specified by NHS England.
Expenditure in excess of the amount specified is
unlawful.

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the
other information presented in the Annual Report
together with the financial statements. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, accordingly,
we do not express an audit opinion or, except
as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the information
therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the financial statements or our audit knowledge.

We assessed the extent of compliance with these
laws and regulations as part of our procedures
on the related financial statement items and our
work on the regularity of expenditure incurred by
the CCG in the year of account.

Based solely on that work:
• we have not identified material misstatements
in the other information; and

Whilst the CCG is subject to many other laws and
regulations, we did not identify any others where
the consequences of non-compliance alone could
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures
in the financial statements.

• in our opinion the other information included
in the Annual Report for the financial year is
consistent with the financial statements.
Annual Governance Statement
We are required to report to you if the Annual
Governance Statement has not been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the
Department of Health and Social Care Group
Accounting Manual 2020/21. We have nothing to
report in this respect.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect
fraud or breaches of law or regulation
Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit,
there is an unavoidable risk that we may not
have detected some material misstatements
in the financial statements, even though we
have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For
example, the further removed non-compliance
with laws and regulations is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements,
the less likely the inherently limited procedures
required by auditing standards would identify it.

Remuneration and Staff Reports
In our opinion the parts of the Remuneration and
Staff Reports subject to audit have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Department of
Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual
2020/21.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained
a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as
these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

Accountable Officer’s responsibilities
As explained more fully in the statement set
out on page 58, the Accountable Officer is
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Report on the CCG’s arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources

responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view. They are
also responsible for such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
assessing the CCG’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern; and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless they have been
informed by the relevant national body of the
intention to dissolve the CCG without the transfer
of its services to another public sector entity.

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are
required to report if we identify any significant
weaknesses in the arrangements that have been
made by the CCG to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We have nothing to report in this respect.

Respective responsibilities in respect of
our review of arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
the use of resources

Auditor’s responsibilities
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but
does not guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of the financial statements.

As explained more fully in the statement set
out on page 58, the Accountable Officer is
responsible for ensuring that the CCG exercises its
functions effectively, efficiently and economically.
We are required under section 21(1)(c) of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to
be satisfied that the CCG has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We are not required to consider, nor have we
considered, whether all aspects of the CCG’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in the use of resources are
operating effectively.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is
provided on the FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities

We planned our work and undertook our review
in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice
and related statutory guidance, having regard
to whether the CCG had proper arrangements
in place to ensure financial sustainability, proper
governance and to use information about
costs and performance to improve the way it
manages and delivers its services. Based on our
risk assessment, we undertook such work as we
considered necessary.

Report on other legal and regulatory
matters
Opinion on regularity
We are required to report on the following
matters under Section 25(1) of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014.

Statutory reporting matters

In our opinion, in all material respects, the
expenditure and income recorded in the financial
statements have been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

We are required by Schedule 2 to the Code of
Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General (‘the Code of Audit Practice’) to
report to you if we refer a matter to the Secretary
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of State and NHS England under section 30 of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
because we have reason to believe that the CCG,
or an officer of the CCG, is about to make, or
has made, a decision which involves or would
involve the body incurring unlawful expenditure,
or is about to take, or has begun to take a course
of action which, if followed to its conclusion,
would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or
deficiency.
We have nothing to report in this respect.

The purpose of our audit work and to
whom we owe our responsibilities
This report is made solely to the Members of the
Governing Body of NHS Leeds CCG, as a body,
in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the
Members of the Governing Body of the CCG, as
a body, those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Members of the Governing
Body, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report or for the opinions we have formed.

Certificate of completion of the audit
We certify that we have completed the audit
of the accounts of NHS Leeds CCG for the
year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit
Practice.
Rashpal Khangura
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Chartered
Accountants
1 Sovereign Square,
Sovereign Street, Leeds LS1 4DA
11 June 2021
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3. Annual Accounts

Tim Ryley
Chief Executive (Accountable Officer)
10 June 2021
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2021
2020-21

2019-20

Note

£’000

£’000

Income from sale of goods and services

2

(391)

(1,022)

Other operating income

2

Total operating income

(1,306)

(5,539)

(1,697)

(6,561)

Staff costs

4

17,773

17,145

Purchase of goods and services

5

1,313,251

1,303,368

-

-

1,287

1,801

Depreciation and impairment charges
Provision expense

5

Other operating expenditure

5

422

456

Total operating expenditure

1,332,733

1,322,770

Net Operating Expenditure

1,331,036

1,316,209

-

-

Finance income
Finance expense
Net Expenditure for the year

-

-

1,331,036

1,316,209

Net (gain)/loss on transfer by absorption

-

Total Net Expenditure for the year

1,331,036

1,316,209

Other Comprehensive Expenditure
Items which will not be reclassified to net operating costs
Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of PPE

-

Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of intangibles

-

Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of financial assets

-

-

Net (gain)/loss on assets held for sale

-

-

Actuarial (gain)/loss in pension schemes

-

-

Impairments and reversals taken to revaluation reserve

-

-

Items that may be reclassified to Net Operating Costs

-

Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of other financial assets

-

Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of available for sale financial assets

-

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets
Sub total

-

-

-

-

1,331,036

1,316,209

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2020

The notes on the following pages form part of this statement.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2021
Note

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

£'000

£'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment property
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets

-

-

-

-

Total non-current assets

-

-

3,132
-

7,882
-

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

8

9

171

315

Total current assets

3,303

8,197

Non-current assets held for sale
Total current assets

3,303

8,197

Total assets

3,303

8,197

10

(45,200)
-

(58,903)
-

11

(2,444)

(538)

Total current liabilities

(47,644)

(59,441)

Non-Current Assets less Net Current Liabilities

(44,341)

(51,244)

-

-

(4,701)

(5,650)

(4,701)

(5,650)

(49,042)

(56,894)

(49,042)
-

(56,894)
-

-

-

(49,042)

(56,894)

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions

11

Total non-current liabilities
Assets less Liabilities
Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund
Revaluation reserve
Other reserves
Charitable reserves
Total Taxpayers’ Equity
The notes on the following pages form part of this statement.

The financial statements on the following pages were approved by the Governing Body on 10 June 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

Tim Ryley
Chief Executive (Accountable Officer)
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers’ Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021
General Revaluation
fund
reserve
£’000
£’000

Other
reserves
£’000

Total
reserves
£’000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2020-21
Balance at 1 April 2020
Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from
closed NHS bodies
Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group
balance at 1 April 2020

(56,894)
-

-

-

(56,894)
-

(56,894)

-

-

(56,894)

(1,331,036)

-

- (1,331,036)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Total revaluations against revaluation reserve

-

-

-

-

Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of other investments
and Financial Assets (excluding available for sale financial assets)
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pensions
Movements in other reserves
Transfers between reserves
Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale
financial assets
Transfers by absorption to/(from) other bodies
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group
Expenditure for the Financial Year
Net funding
Balance at 31 March 2021

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1,331,036)

-

- (1,331,036)

1,338,888
(49,042)

-

-

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group
taxpayers’ equity for 2020-21
Net operating expenditure for the financial year

The notes on the following pages form part of this statement.
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1,338,888
(49,042)

Statement of Changes In Taxpayers’ Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
General Revaluation
fund
reserve
£’000
£’000

Other
reserves
£’000

Total
reserves
£’000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20
Balance at 1 April 2019
Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from
closed NHS bodies
Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group
balance at 1 April 2019

(56,432)
-

-

-

(56,432)
-

(56,432)

-

-

(56,432)

(1,316,209)

-

- (1,316,209)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Total revaluations against revaluation reserve

-

-

-

-

Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of other investments
and Financial Assets (excluding available for sale financial assets)
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pensions
Movements in other reserves
Transfers between reserves
Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale
financial assets
Transfers by absorption to/(from) other bodies
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group
Expenditure for the Financial Year
Net funding
Balance at 31 March 2020

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1,316,209)

-

- (1,316,209)

1,315,747
(56,894)

-

-

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group
taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20
Net operating costs for the financial year

The notes on the following pages form part of this statement.
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1,315,747
(56,894)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating expenditure for the financial year
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments and reversals
Non-cash movements arising on application of new accounting standards
Movement due to transfer by absorption
Other gains/(losses) on foreign exchange
Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Government granted assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Interest paid
Release of PFI deferred credit
Other gains & losses
Finance costs
Unwinding of discounts
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Provisions utilised
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from Operating Activities

8
10
11
11

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received
(Payments) for property, plant and equipment
(Payments) for intangible assets
(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health and Social Care
(Payments) for other financial assets
(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health and Social Care
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets (LIFT)
Non-cash movements arising on application of new accounting standards
Loans made in respect of LIFT
Loans repaid in respect of LIFT
Rental revenue
Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from Investing Activities
Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) before Financing
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net funding received
Grant in aid funding received
Other loans received
Other loans repaid
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on Statement of Financial
Position PFI and LIFT
Capital grants and other capital receipts
Capital receipts surrendered
Non-cash movements arising on application of new accounting standards
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

9

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign
currencies
Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year
The notes on the following pages form part of this statement.
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2020-21
£’000

2019-20
£’000

(1,331,036)
4,750
(13,703)
(330)
1,287
(1,339,032)

(1,316,209)
(1,456)
724
(414)
1,801
(1,315,554)

-

-

(1,339,032)

(1,315,554)

1,338,888
-

1,315,747
-

-

-

1,338,888

1,315,747

(144)

193

315

122

-

-

171

315

Notes to the financial statements
1 Accounting Policies
NHS England has directed that the financial statements of
clinical commissioning groups shall meet the accounting
requirements of the Group Accounting Manual (GAM)
issued by the Department of Health and Social Care.
Consequently, the following financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the Group Accounting
Manual 2020-21 issued by the Department of Health and
Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the Group
Accounting Manual follow International Financial Reporting
Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and
appropriate to clinical commissioning groups, as determined
by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting
Advisory Board. Where the Group Accounting Manual
permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting
policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the
particular circumstances of the clinical commissioning group
for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been
selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical
commissioning group are described below. They have
been applied consistently in dealing with items considered
material in relation to the accounts.

1.2 Accounting Convention

1.1 Going Concern

Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department
of Health and Social Care Group are accounted for in line
with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to income and expenditure
entries.

These accounts have been prepared under the historical
cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories
and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.
1.3 M
 ovement of Assets within the Department of
Health and Social Care Group
As Public Sector Bodies are deemed to operate under
common control, business reconfigurations within the
Department of Health and Social Care Group are outside
the scope of IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Where functions
transfer between two public sector bodies, the Department
of Health and Social Care GAM requires the application
of absorption accounting. Absorption accounting requires
that entities account for their transactions in the period in
which they took place, with no restatement of performance
required when functions transfer within the public sector.
Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting
is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure, and is disclosed separately from operating costs.

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern
basis.
Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns
where the continuation of the provision of a service in the
future is anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of financial
provision for that service in published documents.

1.4 Joint arrangements
Arrangements over which the clinical commissioning group
has joint control with one or more other entities are classified
as joint arrangements. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement. A joint
arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.

Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it
considers whether or not its services will continue to be
provided (using the same assets, by another public sector
entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going
concern for the final set of financial statements. If services
will continue to be provided the financial statements are
prepared on the going concern basis.

A joint operation exists where the parties that have joint
control have rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities relating to the arrangement. Where the clinical
commissioning group is a joint operator it recognises its
share of, assets, liabilities, income and expenses in its own
accounts.

In 2021-22, the funding principles in operation in the later
half of 2020-21 have been continued into the first half of
2021-22. Clinical Commissioning Group allocations have
been set for this period and guidance issued regarding
additional funding to continue the COVID-19 response
whilst supporting key priorities for the NHS. Financial
arrangements for the later half of the year are still to be
finalised.

The clinical commissioning group’s joint operation is the
pooled budget with Leeds City Council - see 1.4.1.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement. Joint ventures are recognised
as an investment and accounted for using the equity method.

The CCG anticipates that funding envelopes for the
remainder of the year will reflect its original pre-COVID
notified allocation levels from NHS England and therefore
be sufficient to enable the Clinical Commissioning Group to
discharge its duties; containing expenditure within available
resources.

The clinical commissioning group has not entered into any
joint ventures.
1.4.1 Pooled Budgets
The clinical commissioning group has entered into a
pooled budget arrangement with Leeds City Council in
accordance with section 75 of the NHS Act 2006. Under
the arrangements, funds are pooled for Better Care Fund
activities and the notes to the accounts provide details of the
income and expenditure.

Based on this position, the CCG believes that it remains
appropriate to prepare the accounts on a going concern
basis.
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1.7 Employee Benefits

The pool is hosted by either the clinical commissioning
group or Leeds City Council. The clinical commissioning
group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income
and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled
budgets, identified in accordance with the pooled budget
agreements.

1.7.1 Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments, including
payments arising from the apprenticeship levy, are recognised
in the period in which the service is received from employees,
including bonuses earned but not yet taken.

1.5 Operating Segments
Income and expenditure are analysed in the Operating
Segments note and are reported in line with management
information used within the clinical commissioning group.

The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the
end of the period is recognised in the financial statements
to the extent that employees are permitted to carry forward
leave into the following period.

1.6 Revenue

1.7.2 Retirement Benefit Costs

In the application of IFRS 15 a number of practical
expedients offered in the Standard have been employed.
These are as follows;

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of
the NHS Pensions Schemes. These schemes are unfunded,
defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, General
Practices and other bodies allowed under the direction of
the Secretary of State in England and Wales. The schemes
are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS
bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets
and liabilities. Therefore, the schemes are accounted for as
though they were defined contribution schemes; the cost
recognised in these accounts represents the contributions
payable for the year. Details of the benefits payable under
these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website
at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.

• As per paragraph 121 of the Standard the clinical
commissioning group will not disclose information
regarding performance obligations which are part of a
contract that has an original expected duration of one
year or less,
• The clinical commissioning group will similarly not disclose
information where revenue is recognised in line with
the practical expedient offered in paragraph B16 of the
Standard where the right to consideration corresponds
directly with the value of the performance completed to
date, and

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the
additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme.
The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is
charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning
group commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the
method of payment.

• The FReM has mandated the exercise of the practical
expedient offered in C7(a) of the Standard that requires
the clinical commissioning group to reflect the aggregate
effect of all contracts modified before the date of initial
application.

The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every
four years and an accounting valuation every year.

The main source of funding for the clinical commissioning
group is from NHS England. This is drawn down and
credited to the general fund. Funding is recognised in the
period in which it is received.

1.8 Other Expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the
extent that, the goods or services have been received. They
are measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when
(or as) performance obligations are satisfied by transferring
promised services to the customer, and is measured at
the amount of the transaction price allocated to that
performance obligation.

1.9 Grants Payable
Where grant funding is not intended to be directly related to
activity undertaken by a grant recipient in a specific period,
the clinical commissioning group recognises the expenditure
in the period in which the grant is paid. All other grants are
accounted for on an accruals basis.

Where income is received for a specific performance
obligation that is to be satisfied in the following year, that
income is deferred.
Payment terms are standard reflecting cross government
principles.

1.10 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The value of the benefit received when the clinical
commissioning group accesses funds from the
Government’s apprenticeship service are recognised
as income in accordance with IAS 20, Accounting for
Government Grants. Where these funds are paid directly
to an accredited training provider, non-cash income and a
corresponding non-cash training expense are recognised,
both equal to the cost of the training funded.

1.10.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases
are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair
value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to
the lessor.
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Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the
clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit.

• A nominal long-term rate of 1.99% (2019-20: 1.99%)
for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over 10 years
and up to and including 40 years from the Statement of
Financial Position date.
• A nominal very long-term rate of 1.99% (2019-20: 1.99%)
for inflation adjusted expected cash flows exceeding 40
years from the Statement of Financial Position date.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives
are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a
reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursements will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and
building components are separated and individually assessed
as to whether they are operating or finance leases.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the clinical
commissioning group has developed a detailed formal plan
for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation
in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring
by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it. The measurement of a
restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures
arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts
that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and
not associated with on-going activities of the entity.

1.11 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial
institution repayable without penalty on notice of not
more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that
mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
insignificant risk of change in value.

1.13 Clinical Negligence Costs

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents
are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and that form an integral part of the clinical
commissioning group’s cash management.

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under
which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual
contribution to NHS Resolution, which in return settles all
clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to
expenditure. Although NHS Resolution is administratively
responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability
remains with clinical commissioning group.

1.12 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning
group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the clinical
commissioning group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as
follows:

1.14 Non-clinical Risk Pooling
The clinical commissioning group participates in the
Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third
Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under
which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual
contribution to NHS Resolution and, in return, receives
assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual
membership contributions, and any excesses payable
in respect of particular claims are charged to operating
expenses as and when they become due.
1.15 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

All general provisions are subject to four separate discount
rates according to the expected timing of cashflows from
the Statement of Financial Position date:

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the clinical
commissioning group, or a present obligation that is not
recognised because it is not probable that a payment will
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured sufficiently reliably.

• A nominal short-term rate of negative 0.02% (2019-20:
0.51%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows up to
and including 5 years from the Statement of Financial
Position date.
• A nominal medium-term rate of 0.18% (2019-20: 0.55%)
for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over 5 years up
to and including 10 years from the Statement of Financial
Position date.

A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a
payment is remote.
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This includes derivatives and financial assets acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the clinical
commissioning group. A contingent asset is disclosed where
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

1.16.4 Impairment
For all financial assets measured at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income (except
equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income), lease receivables and contract
assets, the clinical commissioning group recognises a loss
allowance representing the expected credit losses on the
financial asset.

Where the time value of money is material, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets are disclosed at their
present value.
1.16 Financial Assets

The clinical commissioning group adopts the simplified
approach to impairment in accordance with IFRS 9, and
measures the loss allowance for trade receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses. For other financial assets, the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition
(stage 2) and otherwise at an amount equal to 12 month
expected credit losses (stage 1).

Financial assets are recognised when the clinical
commissioning group becomes party to the financial
instrument contract or, in the case of trade receivables,
when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial
assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have
expired or the asset has been transferred.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
• Financial assets at amortised cost;
• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income and;

HM Treasury has ruled that central government bodies may
not recognise stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against other
government departments, their executive agencies, the Bank
of England, Exchequer Funds and Exchequer Funds assets
where repayment is ensured by primary legislation. The
clinical commissioning group therefore does not recognise
loss allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against
these bodies. Additionally DHSC provides a guarantee of
last resort against the debts of its arm’s lengths bodies and
NHS bodies and the clinical commissioning group does not
recognise allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 impairments
against these bodies.

• Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.
The classification is determined by the cash flow and
business model characteristics of the financial assets, as
set out in IFRS 9, and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.
1.16.1 Financial Assets at Amortised cost
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are those held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by
collecting contractual cash flows and where the cash flows
are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes
most trade receivables and other simple debt instruments.
After initial recognition these financial assets are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any impairment. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset.

For financial assets that have become credit impaired since
initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses at the
reporting date are measured as the difference between
the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. Any adjustment is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.
1.17 Financial Liabilities

1.16.2 F
 inancial Assets at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of
financial position when the clinical commissioning group
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods
or services have been received. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability has been discharged, that is,
the liability has been paid or has expired.

Financial assets held at fair value through other
comprehensive income are those held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
where the cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.

1.17.1 Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities

1.16.3 F
 inancial Assets at Fair Value through
Profit and Loss

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and
loss are those that are not otherwise measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

• The premium received (or imputed) for entering into the
guarantee less cumulative amortisation; and,
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Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant
functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis,
including losses which would have been made good
through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning
group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance
premiums then being included as normal revenue
expenditure).

• The amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with IAS 37: Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
1.17.2 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit
and Loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and
characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts
with embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot
be ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss. They are held at fair value,
with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the clinical
commissioning group’s surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss
incorporates any interest payable on the financial liability.

1.21 Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
In the application of the clinical commissioning group’s
accounting policies, management is required to make
various judgements, estimates and assumptions. These are
regularly reviewed.
1.21.1 Critical Accounting Judgements in
Applying Accounting Policies

1.17.3 Other Financial Liabilities
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, except for loans from Department of Health and
Social Care, which are carried at historic cost. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the life of the asset, to the
net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is
recognised using the effective interest method.

Where critical judgements are made, apart from those
involving estimations that management has made in the
process of applying the clinical commissioning group’s
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements, details
are provided in the relevant notes to the accounts.
1.21.2 Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

1.18 Value Added Tax

Where key estimations have been made by management in
the process of applying the clinical commissioning group’s
accounting policies, that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements, details
are provided in the relevant notes to the accounts.

Most of the activities of the clinical commissioning group
are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output
tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not
recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant
expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase
cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input
VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.22 Gifts
Gifts are items that are voluntarily donated, with no
preconditions and without the expectation of any return.
Gifts include all transactions economically equivalent to free
and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of an asset
for its expected useful life, and the sale or lease of assets at
below market value.

1.19 Foreign Currencies
The clinical commissioning group’s functional currency and
presentational currency is pounds sterling and amounts are
presented in thousands of pounds unless expressly stated
otherwise. Transactions denominated in a foreign currency
are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March.
Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are
recognised in the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/
deficit in the period in which they arise.

1.23 A
 ccounting standards that have been issued but
have not yet been adopted
The Department of Health and Social Care GAM does not
require the following IFRS Standards and Interpretations
to be applied in 2020-21. These Standards are still subject
to HM Treasury FReM adoption, with IFRS 16 being
for implementation in 2022-23, and the government
implementation date for IFRS 17 still subject to HM Treasury
consideration.

1.20 Losses & Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament
would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the
health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are
items that ideally should not arise.

• IFRS 16 Leases – The Standard is effective 1 April 2022 as
adapted and interpreted by the FReM.
• IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts – Application required for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021,
but not yet adopted by the FReM; early adoption is not
therefore permitted.

They are therefore subject to special control procedures
compared with the generality of payments. They are
divided into different categories, which govern the way that
individual cases are handled.

The application of the Standards would not have a material
impact on the accounts if they were in effect at the
reporting date.
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2 Operating Income
2020-21

2019-20

£’000

£’000

16
267
88
20
391

14
396
597
15
1,022

Other operating income
Rental revenue from finance leases
Rental revenue from operating leases
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure: NHS
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure: non-NHS
Receipt of donations (capital/cash)
Receipt of government grants for capital acquisitions
Continuing health care risk pool contributions
Non cash apprenticeship training grants revenue
Other non contract revenue
Total other operating income

8
1,298
1,306

18
5,521
5,539

Total operating income

1,697

6,561

Income from sale of goods and services (contracts)
Education, training and research
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Patient transport services
Prescription fees and charges
Dental fees and charges
Income generation
Other contract income
Recoveries in respect of employee benefits
Total income from sale of goods and services
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3 Income from Sale of Goods and Services (contracts)
3.1 Disaggregation of Income
2020-21

Source of Revenue
NHS
Non NHS
Total

Education,
training
and research
£'000

Non-patient
care services to
other bodies
£'000

Other Contract
income
£'000

Recoveries in
respect of
employee benefits
£'000

Total
£'000

16
16

258
9
267

88
88

20
20

278
113
391

Education,
training
and research
£'000

Non-patient care
services to
other bodies
£'000

Other Contract
income
£'000

Recoveries in
respect of
employee benefits
£'000

Total
£'000

14
14

396
396

597
597

15
15

411
611
1,022

Education,
training
and research
£'000

Non-patient care
services to
other bodies
£'000

Other Contract
income
£'000

Recoveries in
respect of
employee benefits
£'000

Total
£'000

16
16

258
9
267

88
88

20
20

382
9
391

Education,
training
and research
£'000

Non-patient care
services to
other bodies
£'000

Other Contract
income
£'000

Recoveries in
respect of
employee benefits
£'000

Total
£'000

14
14

396
396

597
597

15
15

1,022
1,022

2019-20

Source of Revenue
NHS
Non NHS
Total

2020-21

Timing of Revenue
Point in time
Over time
Total

2019-20

Timing of Revenue
Point in time
Over time
Total

81

3.2 Transaction price to remaining contract performance obligations
Contract revenue expected to be recognised in the future periods related to contract performance obligations not yet
completed at the reporting date.

Revenue
expected from
NHSE Bodies

2020-21
Revenue expected
from Other DHSC
Group Bodies

Revenue expected
from Non-DHSC
Group Bodies

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Not later than 1 year

-

-

408

408

Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years

-

-

57

57

Later than 5 Years

-

-

-

-

Total

-

-

465

465

Revenue
expected from
NHSE Bodies

2019-20
Revenue expected
from Other DHSC
Group Bodies

Revenue expected
from Non-DHSC
Group Bodies

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Not later than 1 year

-

-

184

184

Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years

-

-

100

100

Later than 5 Years

-

-

-

-

Total

-

-

284

284
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4 Employee Benefits and Staff Numbers
4.1 Employee benefits

2020-21
Permanent
Employees

Other

Total

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer contributions to NHS Pension scheme
Other pension costs
Apprenticeship levy
Other post-employment benefits
Other employment benefits
Termination benefits
Gross employee benefits expenditure

£’000
13,646
1,421
2,425
9
57
7
17,565

£’000
208
208

£’000
13,854
1,421
2,425
9
57
7
17,773

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.1)
Net employee benefits including capitalised costs

(20)
17,545

208

(20)
17,753

Less employee costs capitalised
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

17,545

208

17,753

2019-20
Permanent
Employees

Other

Total

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer contributions to NHS Pension scheme
Other pension costs
Apprenticeship levy
Other post-employment benefits
Other employment benefits
Termination benefits
Gross employee benefits expenditure

£’000
12,876
1,358
2,317
7
55
110
16,723

£’000
422
422

£’000
13,298
1,358
2,317
7
55
110
17,145

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.1)
Net employee benefits including capitalised costs

(15)
16,708

422

(15)
17,130

Less employee costs capitalised
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

16,708

422

17,130

4.1.1 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits

2020-21

2019-20

Permanent
Employees

Other

Total

Total

£’000
(20)
(20)

£’000
-

£’000
(20)
(20)

£’000
(15)
(15)

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer contributions to NHS Pension scheme
Other pension costs
Other post-employment benefits
Other employment benefits
Termination benefits
Total recoveries in respect of employee benefits
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4.2 Average number of people employed
2020-21

2019-20

Permanently
employed

Other

Total

Permanently
employed

Other

Total

Number

Number

Number

Number

Number

Number

329

3

332

328

8

336

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total
Of the above:
Number of whole time equivalent
people engaged on capital projects
4.3 Exit packages agreed in the financial year

Compulsory redundancies
Less than £10,000
£10,001 to £25,000
£25,001 to £50,000
£50,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £150,000
£150,001 to £200,000
Over £200,001
Total

Number
1
1

£
7,479
7,479

Compulsory redundancies
Less than £10,000
£10,001 to £25,000
£25,001 to £50,000
£50,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £150,000
£150,001 to £200,000
Over £200,001
Total

Number
1
1
2
4

2020-21
Other agreed departures
Number
-

Total
£
-

2019-20
Other agreed departures

£
4,036
14,591
79,285
97,912

Number
-

Number
-

£
7,479
7,479

Total
£
-

2020-21
Departures where special
payments have been made
Less than £10,000
£10,001 to £25,000
£25,001 to £50,000
£50,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £150,000
£150,001 to £200,000
Over £200,001
Total

Number
1
1

£
-

Number
1
1
2
4

£
4,036
14,591
79,285
97,912

2019-20
Departures where special
payments have been made
Number
-

£
-

These tables report the number and value of exit packages agreed in the financial year. Severance costs have been paid in
accordance with the provisions of Section 16 of the Agenda for Change Terms and Conditions of Employment Handbook and/
or associated employer obligations. Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the
latest in full, in the year of departure.
The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.			
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4.4 Pension costs

4.4.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions
of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the
NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.
Both are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS
employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under
the direction of the Secretary of State for Health and Social
Care in England and Wales. They are not designed to be
run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify
their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.
Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a
defined contribution scheme, the cost to the NHS body
of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the
contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting
period.

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability
in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking
into account recent demographic experience), and to
recommend contribution rates payable by employees and
employers.
The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS
Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The
results of this valuation set the employer contribution rate
payable from April 2019 to 20.6% of pensionable pay.
The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the
cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap that
was set following the 2012 valuation. In January 2019,
the Government announced a pause to the cost control
element of the 2016 valuations, due to the uncertainty
around member benefits caused by the discrimination ruling
relating to the McCloud case.

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised
in the financial statements do not differ materially from
those that would be determined at the reporting date by
a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the
period between formal valuations shall be four years, with
approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline
of these follows:

The Government subsequently announced in July 2020
that the pause had been lifted, and so the cost control
element of the 2016 valuations could be completed.
The Government has set out that the costs of remedy of
the discrimination will be included in this process. HMT
valuation directions will set out the technical detail of
how the costs of remedy will be included in the valuation
process. The Government has also confirmed that
the Government Actuary is reviewing the cost control
mechanism (as was originally announced in 2018). The
review will assess whether the cost control mechanism is
working in line with original government objectives and
reported to Government in April 2021. The findings of this
review will not impact the 2016 valuations, with the aim for
any changes to the cost cap mechanism to be made in time
for the completion of the 2020 actuarial valuations.

4.4.1 Accounting valuation
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by
the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s
Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This
utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting
period in conjunction with updated membership and
financial data for the current reporting period, and is
accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial
reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as
at 31 March 2021, is based on valuation data as 31 March
2020, updated to 31 March 2021 with summary global
member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial
assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant
FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by
HM Treasury have also been used.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is
contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms
part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These
accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and
are published annually. Copies can also be obtained from
The Stationery Office.
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5 Operating Expenses

Purchase of goods and services
Services from other CCGs and NHS England
Services from foundation trusts
Services from other NHS trusts
Provider Sustainability Fund
Services from other WGA bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies
Purchase of social care
General dental services and personal dental services
Prescribing costs
Pharmaceutical services
General ophthalmic services
GPMS/APMS and PCTMS
Supplies and services – clinical
Supplies and services – general
Consultancy services
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Audit fees
Other non statutory audit expenditure
• Internal audit services
• Other services
Other professional fees
Legal fees
Education, training and conferences
Funding to group bodies
CHC Risk Pool contributions
Non cash apprenticeship training grants
Total purchase of goods and services
Depreciation and impairment charges
Depreciation
Amortisation
Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment
Impairments and reversals of intangible assets
Impairments and reversals of financial assets
• Assets carried at amortised cost
• Assets carried at cost
• Available for sale financial assets
Impairments and reversals of non-current assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals of investment properties
Total depreciation and impairment charges
Provision expense
Change in discount rate
Provisions
Total provision expense
Other operating expenditure
Chair and Non Executive Members
Grants to other bodies
Clinical negligence
Research and development (excluding staff costs)
Expected credit loss on receivables
Expected credit loss on other financial assets (stage 1 and 2 only)
Inventories written down
Inventories consumed
Other expenditure
Total other operating expenditure
Total operating expenditure

2020-21
£’000

2019-20
£’000

1,548
157,717
667,292
216,043
5
132,138
37
130,494
110
1,384
574
3,862
10
668
84

1,617
158,444
678,450
215,429
122,785
67
119,175
122
1,333
701
3,299
37
503
70

14
1,038
151
74
8
1,313,251

20
977
160
161
18
1,303,368

-

-

-

-

1,287
1,287

1,801
1,801

311
111
422

364
11
(5)
86
456

1,314,960

1,305,625

Prescribing expenditure detailed above is reflective of a key estimated accrual for the final two months of the year and
the impact of prior year accrual reversals. Prescribing accruals are based upon forecasted figures provided by the Business
Services Authority and estimates undertaken by management based on information available at the end of the financial
year, together with past experience.						
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6 Better Payment Practice Code
Measure of compliance

2020-21

2019-20

Number

£’000

Number

£’000

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target

17,906
17,744
99.1%

357,682
355,364
99.4%

18,157
17,942
98.8%

352,895
351,827
99.7%

NHS Payables
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target

1,563
1,549
99.1%

838,127
838,151
100.0%

4,750
4,713
99.2%

868,152
866,022
99.8%

6.1 Response to COVID-19 NHS financial arrangements
During 2020-21, in order to reduce NHS transactional burden and allow NHS staff to focus on the Pandemic response,
intra-NHS cross charges were eliminated and organisations instead received a combination of adjusted block contract
payments from CCGs and centrally funded top-ups to cover the lost income. Consequently the CCG has seen a significant
reduction in the number of invoices processed with other NHS organisations.

7 Operating Leases
7.1 As lessee
The CCG occupies property leased and managed by NHS Property Services Ltd (NHS PS). The current lease was signed in
March 2018.
7.1.1 Payments recognised as an expense
Land

2020-21
Buildings Other

Total

Land

2019-20
Buildings Other

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents
Sub-lease payments

-

228
-

6
-

234
-

-

156
-

11
-

167
-

Total

-

228

6

234

-

156

11

167

2020-21
Buildings Other
£’000 £’000

Total
£’000

Land
£’000

7.1.2 Future minimum lease payments

Land
£’000

2019-20
Buildings
Other
£’000
£’000

Total
£’000

Payable:
No later than one year
Between one and five years
After five years

-

254
250
-

4
-

258
250
-

-

253
504
-

6
4
-

259
508
-

Total

-

504

4

508

-

757

10

767
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8 Trade and Other Receivables
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current
Current
£’000
£’000
NHS receivables: revenue
NHS receivables: capital
NHS prepayments
NHS accrued income
NHS contract receivables not yet invoiced/non-invoice
NHS non contract trade receivables (i.e. pass through funding)
NHS contract assets
Non-NHS and other WGA receivables: revenue
Non-NHS and other WGA receivables: capital
Non-NHS and other WGA prepayments
Non-NHS and other WGA accrued income
Non-NHS and other WGA contract receivable not yet invoiced/non-invoice
Non-NHS and other WGA non contract trade receivables (i.e. pass through funding)
Non-NHS contract assets
Expected credit loss allowance - receivables
VAT
Private finance initiative and other public private partnership arrangement prepayments
and accrued income
Interest receivables
Finance lease receivables
Operating lease receivables
Other receivables and accruals
Total trade & other receivables

1,300
37
52
83
501
920
117
23
90

1,447
2,405
1,549
71
40
370
670
1,159
63
96

-

-

9
3,132

12
7,882

As at 31 March 2021 there were no non-current trade and other receivables (none as at 31 March 2020).
There are no prepaid pensions contributions (none as at 31 March 2020).

8.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired
31 March 2021

31 March 2020

DHSC Group
Bodies

Non DHSC
Group Bodies

DHSC Group
Bodies

Non DHSC
Group Bodies

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

By up to three months
By three to six months
By more than six months

159
29
-

136
3
-

203
33
13

153
-

Total

188

139

249

153
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9 Cash and Cash Equivalents
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£’000
£’000
315
122
(144)
193
171
315

Balance at 1 April 2020
Net change in year
Balance at 31 March 2021
Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service
Cash with commercial banks
Cash in hand
Current investments
Cash and cash equivalents as in Statement of Financial Position
Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service
Bank overdraft: commercial banks
Total bank overdrafts
Balance at 31 March 2021

171
171

315
315

-

-

171

315

10 Trade and Other Payables
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current
Current
£’000
£’000
Interest payable
NHS payables: revenue
NHS payables: capital
NHS accruals
NHS deferred income
NHS contract liabilities
Non-NHS and other WGA payables: revenue
Non-NHS and other WGA payables: capital
Non-NHS and other WGA accruals
Non-NHS and other WGA deferred income
Non-NHS contract liabilities
Social security costs
VAT
Tax
Payments received on account
Other payables and accruals
Total trade & other payables

480
24
3,178
39,446
43
291
232
183
1,323
45,200

As at 31 March 2021 there were no non-current trade and other payables (none as at 31 March 2020).
Other payables include £1,321k outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2021 (£1,094k as at 31 March 2020).
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10,060
2,890
1,461
42,922
59
228
180
3
1,100
58,903

11 Provisions
31 March 2021
Current
Redundancy
Legal claims
Continuing care
Other
Total

£’000
203
485
1,756
2,444

Total current and non-current

7,145

31 March 2020

Non-current

Current

£’000
861
3,840
4,701

Non-current

£’000
150
388
538

£’000
666
4,984
5,650

6,188

Redundancy

Legal Claims

Continuing
Care

Other

Total

£'000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

-

150

1,054

4,984

6,188

Arising during the year

203

-

667

1,370

2,240

Utilised during the year

-

(150)

(180)

-

(330)

Reversed unused

-

-

(195)

(758)

(953)

203

-

1,346

5,596

7,145

203

-

485

1,756

2,444

Between one and five years

-

-

861

3,840

4,701

After five years

-

-

-

-

-

203

-

1,346

5,596

7,145

Balance at 1 April 2020

Balance at 31 March 2021
Expected timing of cash flows:
Within one year

Balance at 31 March 2021

11.1 Continuing care
The provision for Continuing Care relates to potential cost for continuing care reviews. There is uncertainty regarding the
outcomes and timings of individual case reviews.
11.2 Other
Other provisions continuing from 2019-20 include:
• HMRC ongoing review of supplies made under the Lead Provider Framework (£1.7m), the timing of expected cash-flows in
relation to this provision has been reclassified as current given the revised expected time frames for resolution;
• VAT consideration with respect to transactions between Leeds CCG, the former Leeds CCGs and the Leeds GP Federations/
Confederation (£2.7m); and
• Dilapidation costs for the leased building the CCG occupies (£0.5m).
Provisions arising in 2020-21 relate to ongoing in year transactions between the Leeds CCG and the Leeds GP Federations/
Confederations and further provision in respect of taxation considerations of new models of contracting in primary care
(£1.4m). Clarification has been obtained relating to an element of these transactions that has enabled £0.75m of the 2019-20
provision to be reversed.									
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12 Other Financial Commitments
The CCG has entered into non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases, private finance initiative contracts or other service
concession arrangements) which expire as follows:
2020-21
£'000
10,168
10,168

In not more than one year
In more than one year but not more than five years
In more than five years
Total

2019-20
£'000
3,320
3,320

13 Financial Instruments
13.1 Financial risk management

13.1.2 Interest rate risk

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of
the role that financial instruments have had during the
period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in
undertaking its activities.

The clinical commissioning group is able to borrow from
government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability
as confirmed by NHS England. The borrowings are for 1 to
25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and
interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed
for the life of the loan. The clinical commissioning group
therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Because the clinical commissioning group is financed
through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the
degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also,
financial instruments play a much more limited role in
creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed
companies, to which the financial reporting standards
mainly apply. The clinical commissioning group has
limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and
financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day
operational activities rather than being held to change the
risks facing the clinical commissioning group in undertaking
its activities.

13.1.3 Credit risk
Because the majority of the clinical commissioning group’s
revenue comes from parliamentary funding, the clinical
commissioning group has low exposure to credit risk. The
maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are
in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and
other receivables note.
13.1.4 Liquidity risk
The clinical commissioning group is required to operate
within revenue and capital resource limits, which are
financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. The
clinical commissioning group draws down cash to cover
expenditure, as the need arises. The clinical commissioning
group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Treasury management operations are carried out by the
finance department, within parameters defined formally
within the clinical commissioning group standing financial
instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body.
Treasury activity is subject to review by the clinical
commissioning group and internal auditors.
13.1.1 Currency risk
The clinical commissioning group is principally a domestic
organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets
and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. The
clinical commissioning group has no overseas operations.
The clinical commissioning group therefore has low
exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
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13.2 Financial assets
31 March 2021
Financial Assets
measured at
amortised cost

Equity Instruments
designated at
FVOCI

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,216
579
328
171
2,294

-

1,216
579
328
171
2,294

Financial Liabilities
measured at
amortised cost

Other

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

464
30,097
14,182
44,743

-

464
30,097
14,182
44,743

Equity investment in group bodies
Equity investment in external bodies
Loans receivable with group bodies
Loans receivable with external bodies
Trade and other receivables with NHSE bodies
Trade and other receivables with other DHSC group bodies
Trade and other receivables with external bodies
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total at 31 March 2021

31 March 2021
13.3 Financial liabilities

Loans with group bodies
Loans with external bodies
Trade and other payables with NHSE bodies
Trade and other payables with other DHSC group bodies
Trade and other payables with external bodies
Other financial liabilities
Private Finance Initiative and finance lease obligations
Total at 31 March 2021

14 Operating Segments
The CCG considers that it has only one operating segment: commissioning of healthcare services.
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15 Joint Arrangements
15.1 Interests in joint operations						
The joint operations of the CCG relate solely to Pooled Budget BCF arrangements.
The clinical commissioning group has entered into pooled budget arrangements with Leeds City Council. The Pools are hosted
by either the CCG or Leeds City Council. Under the arrangement funds are pooled under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 for
the Better Care Fund. 						
The contributions made by NHS Leeds Clinical Commissioning Group in the financial year are as follows:
Pooled Budget Fund 1 CCG Hosted s75 Agreements
Income
Expenditure
Pooled Budget Fund 2 Leeds City Council Hosted s75 Agreements
Income
Expenditure

2020-21
£’000
26,489
(26,489)

2019-20
£’000
24,716
(24,716)

2020-21
£’000
24,066
(24,066)

2019-20
£’000
23,023
(23,023)

As part of the development of the Better Care Fund (BCF) in Leeds, a Partnership Agreement with Leeds City Council and
Leeds CCG was put in place that describes the commissioning arrangements for a range of health and social care services.
The two funds are hosted by either Leeds City Council or Leeds CCG. The BCF Partnership Agreement is based on the national
template developed by NHS England and Bevan Brittan.
Routine monitoring of the delivery of the BCF is undertaken by the Leeds Plan Delivery Group (LPDG). This group reports into
Integrated Commissioning Executive (ICE) which is the BCF Partnership Board, with quarterly reporting to the Health and
Wellbeing Board.
A summary for 2020-21 is tabled below:						
Contributions

Fund 1 CCG Hosted s75 Agreements
Fund 2 Council Hosted s75 Agreements
Total

Leeds
CCG

Leeds City
Council

£’000
26,489
24,066
50,555

£’000
11,000
11,000

Total
£’000
26,489
35,066
61,555

Expenditure

Fund 1 CCG Hosted s75 Agreements
Fund 2 Council Hosted s75 Agreements
Total

Leeds
CCG

Leeds City
Council

Total

£’000
26,489
24,066
50,555

£’000
11,000
11,000

£’000
26,489
35,066
61,555

Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) £30.7m (2019-20: £27.4m) and Winter Pressures NIL (2019-20: £3.3m) were whole of
Leeds direct grants paid directly to the local authority during 2020-21 . For 2020-21 the Winter Pressures grant was rolled
into the iBCF.						
These grants were not included in the BCF Section 75 agreement between the local authority and the CCG during 2020-21
and therefore are not included in the above figures.
A further £7.5m (2019-20: £7.5m), relating to non-elective admissions, also forms part of the BCF but is not included in the
Section 75 agreement and is therefore also excluded from the above figures.
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16 Related Party Transactions
During the year the following key individuals of the CCG were either related to, or were themselves members of medical
practices or other organisations with which the CCG had material transactions concerning the provision of medical services
and the purchase of healthcare. The value of transactions with these organisations are listed below:

Note

Payments
to Related
Party

Receipts
from
Related
Party

Amounts
owed to
Related
Party

Amounts
due from
Related
Party

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

1,608
38
145
1,924
4,596
1,749
723
74,306
1,566

1,227
-

37
63
48
66
23
2,564
55

142
-

Entities related to NHS Leeds CCG governing body members:
Lofthouse Surgery - Dr Ben Browning
Barnsley Hospital NHS FT - Cheryl Hobson
Leeds Jewish Welfare Board - Helen Lewis
Oakwood Lane Medical Practice - Dr Jason Broch
Leeds Student Medical Practice - Dr Julianne Lyons
Crossley Street Surgery - Dr Keith Miller
Kirkstall Lane Medical centre - Dr Keith Miller
Leeds City Council - Victoria Eaton
Burton Croft Surgery - Dr Gordon Sinclair

1

Note
1. Resigned from the Governing Body with effect from 30th Jun 2020

The DHSC is regarded as a related party. During the year the CCG has had a significant number of material transactions
with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent. These entities are listed below:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Airedale NHS Foundation Trust
Bradford Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Harrogate and District NHS Foundation Trust
Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust
Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust
NHS England
Tees, Esk & Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust
York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Yorkshire Ambulance Service NHS Trust
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17 Events After the End of the Reporting Period
There are no adjusting events after the reporting period which will have a material effect on the financial statements of NHS
Leeds CCG.

18 Losses and Special Payments
The total number of losses and special payments cases, and their total value, was as follows:
18.1 Losses
The CCG had no losses in the year.
18.2 Special payments
Total Number
of Cases

2020-21
Total Value
of Cases

Total Number
of Cases

2019-20
Total Value
of Cases

Number
1
1
-

£’000
1
150
-

Number
-

£’000
-

-

-

-

-

Special severance payments Treasury approved

-

-

-

-

Total

2

151

-

-

Compensation payments
Compensation payments Treasury approved
Extra contractual payments
Extra contractual payments Treasury approved
Ex gratia payments
Ex gratia payments Treasury approved
Extra statutory extra regulatory payments
Extra statutory extra regulatory payments
Treasury approved

19 Financial Performance Targets
NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).
The CCG’s performance against those duties was as follows:
2020-21

2019-20

Target

Performance

Target

Performance

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

1,332,927

1,332,733

1,322,876

1,322,770

-

-

-

-

1,331,230

1,331,036

1,316,315

1,316,209

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed
the amount specified in Directions

-

-

-

-

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed
the amount specified in Directions

-

-

-

-

16,222

13,652

18,180

13,376

Expenditure not to exceed income
Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified
in Directions
Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified
in Directions

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the
amount specified in Directions
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